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1] OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 827% in the last 3 years
from £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Qur renewable enargy sites’
carbon saving Is over 822,600
carbon tonnes this year

Number of lcans

Over the year-we
provided financing to, cn
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites
We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread

predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive's review

Cur Group was in a sodd position o ning ol of
the Locxdr:wra response t¢ Cov d-13, and our

s contirted to periorm robusty
mroughout the year This year has zeen

unforecas:ed growth in

business
L some
vaiue of cartan divis ors

primarily dr ven oy the inCrease in energy pnces

Fern Tracing Limired {("the Company” or togetner
with s subsidigries "the Group’s targels consistant
growth for sharehclders over the long term, with a
focus on steady and prediciabie arowth, thss
paricdlary imporiant durng more challengng
econornic condiors We rave a diversified and

mature bysi

32 befiting a Group with more thar
ing h'story and ambition. Te Group
COMmprises maore than

12 years of trad
200 corrpanes that rave
operated in a range of sectors over many years
generating ste
sharetolders
we expect 1o
volatility.

ady lorg-term growth for our
We operate n essential sectors that

erfcrry steadily through market

- abie o aad
ncrerrental expansion ang diversificaton in g

From this secure base we have bes

rmeasured way rougn seekng cut opporiunities v
new adjacert sector:
with a platform to contnue to expand in . ne with
our existing strategy. Today, our Group Comorises
arergy, properiy lerding, healhcare infrastructure.
fibre and nouse hulding divisions. We nave grown
to e a signrficant presence with n our most

establishec

sectors, producirg 4 2% of the UK's
solar energy and 17% ¢f the LK's onshorg wind
nergy cutput and bulding 3 £261m shiort and

"

adium term lerd ng busiress that fac itates

b w»

('D

construction and rr crovement of hcmes
trroughout tre UK
Tre Corroany's srare price de ivered 10% grow'h

I 12 reonths, well a~ead of cur farget

of 4% growih per annorm The extracrainary grovwih
iz attr butanlke 1o our e”ergy Qiv'e o, wrich has
benshltad fror: g signfcant roreass in wng-tert
s and erergy forward rate

aditon to infatcon. Tris

ieerhareanrsanaees

Increase N the vaue of our énergy division was
5UD ort(—:d by soud operationar performance acress
all sectors anc some organtc growth in newer
sectors

We remain a sJpicrtive ampley
1,690 fuil-time staff ac:
own and operate, and i~arect

o, WL aTe Than

he businessas that we

w

gl
errployment
provided for Purdreds more peopie through

contracts that we have ir place.

A reflection on our year
Our business rased £404m frorm investo
delivered consistert revenues while growing czpiia.

depoyment resulting in £E712m r revenue
acress the Groun (20210 E425m) ard net
assets of £2,219m (2021 £1,888m restated).

Tre financisl statements for the year sirow an
operat.ng proht sefore ax of £42m aga nst our
tig oroft Ths

expeced outcome of a srall accour

robust perfarmarce is g airect result of enargy
produced by the greup being s

dunng the year Arrost 80% of cu

d for higher prices
r OLSINEss

cormprizes renewable enargy genesating a5se:s such
as solar energy sites and wing fa”ﬂs, whichn provige
long-terr reverue streams Trese are

Giversme— 2cross a range of techng

ﬂ
h

aga nst poor performance (N a spe
contrbure towards steady, preo\cfab
growtr, iowever. ingr vawdes car sull k
by cnanges in pricing ard demand. W= have se

[ys]

r
consecut ve and matenal rcreases in lonc term
enerqy price fcraca
globally over tnetast 15 reon
econcmy recovers from the Cov d-19 pandemic,
aresult of
e corfictin Ukraine, Alonig with niflation these

d seeks arer-ative sources of erergy as

faciors "ave maeraly increasec the vaius of the

Croup's energy 855ets

1
i
:
\
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Chief Executive's review

rnarkets and starting construction on a large wind
farrm in Australia At the start of tne year we added
nine additional sites ¢ our reserve power divison

sites i total icompared 10

which brings us up o 26
ten sites for most of 20211 These sites nave
nerformed abcad of expeciaticns, generating

EBITDA of £20m (2021, £1im; dunrg the year,

Our successiil and weli-established biomass
division conundes to pe-form well and ha

dei vered stable refurns since acguisition in 2015
This year, | have been particuarly pleased (o see
strong nerforrnance at our Newest b'omrass sie 0

Snetterton, East Angla, which was acquirec in April

2021, proving to be g valuable addibon o tne
nusiness. During the year we purchased a Waste-
lc-Energy faci.ty currently under corstraction in

Ayrahre
three years and will be

s beerin
capable of
185 600 tonnes per annum of non-regyclable

ccommeraal and industrial waste whicr

. Tne faclity ha development for

processing over

nousenol
wouls otherwise be sent o landfill or exparted.

This will generate 17 MWe of low carbon electricity,
enough to power 20,000 homeas. It wili be the farst
:arge—sca_e subsidv free waste-to-erergy project n
western 52 nd and projected completion date s

T egrly 4044

Over recent years, many of our energy assets have
been urder construction whch nas contributed to
our pre\” cusly reported accounidng losses. Thig
typ cal of such businesses during growth phase

evern wien

i

cach generative, because finance Costs
and accodrting charges, such as depreciatic
exceeded revendeas. This aivision has now reachen

our target sze and sector spit.

Accardngly this year | am pleased t© report an
accounting proft before tax of £48rm against our
nudgeted small accountng profit This skghtly
-arger than expected profitis due to the maturity of
the portfciio and higher erergy prices, résultng in
mcreased revenue from our energy division as well
as an increase in infiation (az expiained below)

Qur property iending usiness makes wp around
27% of the G es snort and medium
term secured loans 1o experienced property

sroup and cormprise

orofessionals Tris estatlished part f our business
continued 1o perform well following & short pericd

of slow down durmg Cond-19 wnen we
¢ owrite feyyer loans, Our average

rto U<

nentionally chose t

(an Sook was 18/ oans ths yea DOMrowWers

ratea at
v 70N, N

it raintairs access to valuakle security

Our lending d.visio
conservative loan 1o vaiue levels [below

n nas always oper

craer tnat
there

nas served the Groun

- is a reduction In property val.es This strategy
weli since rcepuon 12 years
ago, and it has operated trrough pericds of change
Sroup s taking @ naturally

Fmg maw lencing

several tirmes, Tne C
cautious approach when asses
opportumties in ight of the

out.ook. To dare, the Group nas

anging economic
lert£2.2bn of

sroperty loans since iIncept’'on in 2050, sufferng
only £&rn in capital losses. This strong frack record

the result of cur careful agproach . this $ectcr,

comprising disciplined due dilige~ce, conservative
loan-to-value ratios and an ability ang willingness to

reduce activity in this secior during fSrmes of

econoMic Jncerairty. We will continue 1o adopt

this anproach taroughodt the coming year.

The healthcare divis-or makes wp around 4% of the

cup and s broacly performing wel Qur
retiremert villages busiress Rangeford Holdirgs
Limited {"Rangeford”) continued to sell apartments
an three sites, commenced construction of a fourth
village in Chersey, and acquired a fifih location
rear Cambridge cumg the vear Sales at the

ted to commence in 2024
whe Cambridge site i

Cherfsay site are exg
wle construction at
expected to start in 2022 with the first sales
cornmencing in 2026

ﬂ-w

Our fibre divisior was established n 2019 and

rernains ar area of growth for the Group, now
compnsing of six operating businesses Cur
Jurassic Fibre, Sw.sh Fibre,

resigential businesses,

saaEiiy
omumi@?‘;
s

oy




Chief Executive's review

Grganet and Allpoinis Fiore are building urrafast
‘fiore to the premises” proadband netwerks in
recions of the UK which have been overlonxed oy
larger operators. Gigane: provides conneclivity 1o
homes and businesses across the UK usirg CityFibre
and Openreach .nrastructure and Virrf 1 a software
development cormnany which has developed
praoprietary software to aliow Intarne: Service
Provic

ers to sed connecivity over who.esale enanled

networks, includirg Altooints Fibre

Vorposs s the
LUi's crily ded.cated enterprise fibre network o focus

on prov ding cerneciivily 1o businesses in Lonaon

N the year, Gur residential fbre businesses
conunued Wnvest capital in exparcing ter

etworks in the domme Counties, the South andg

3

thawest of England, and are «

TOW O"‘hOdr’J\ﬂf‘

oW
Q

ustomers o their networks, generating recusring
revenues for the Group Qur state-of-the-art

nebworks are able o reet customer demand ‘or
higher broadbard s

more working-from-ho

seeds required as 3 resuls of

e and increasad usage of
videc-on-dernand services In London, Vorboss has
50 continees 1o bund anc has instailed over

')

Ik of bre with a comrmntrent o offer 10Ghps

niratl Lendon

Wnilst our fibre divis:on rema ns 17 2 growth phase
for the ~ext -

an accounting profi,

5 years we do not expect it to report

Towards the erd of the year, we acded a new
progerty developer 1o the Group, with the acquiziuor
of Elvia Homes UElvia™ for £85m Elvia s an
estapiished house tul
fariy horres
wvilages
Group, we plar 1o grow 111 a
a

r developing mid-rraret
in London
We This represenis a very smal paert of tre

COMIMUtEr Iowns il

rmeasured way over

the re

Ve years with an ult mate target

6C0 Fomes per year, inclug ng 200 nigr qualin
zfforcabie

leadershio team whe are key 10 7Lnning ne Lusiness

romes, Bivia nias a 37rong €xisting

{nflation and Interesti rates

The hugher raie of Inflation exgerienced this year
has been responsivie for somre of the
culperiormance aga rst expeciations 1 the
Comrpary's snare pnce. HM Treasury forecast that
Nl 2025, a= a
ecave more fevenue for the

mign infiation ‘eiy to ke present L
esult we expectio
enargy generated within cur energy civicion, and a
higher value from tre governmeant subsidies trat
sorne of our energy sites benelt rom, ncreasing
NOse sites. However, a short pericd of
high inf.auon suzh as fcrecast has very ltile effect
on the raie at whizh the Group is expe
Tris

derive their va'ne fromm discourted o

is because e renawsble energy sies we Own

rojected fulure

5
[

3]
—_
[l

cashflows over the time they arg expect
operate far, typ cally 20 years or mrore if the
outlook for ong-ierm
rrpact on our $hare price cheuld be positive

pecadse Twould ingresse the revenue each of our
siies would expect 1o mak

2, ir contrast 1o a

reatively iixed cost base.

The expected nse in interest raies 13 forecagt to

returni to norma. after a signiicant period o very

low rates, The irmeciate impact of thas or our
busnass 1T expesied to be broady neufral sinc
V

our Group s O a3 nNot o

EXDENeNce sIgn Scant vaile eros-on when interest

irrenticnally structured so

rates change Ve conunue to take 2 caut'cus

approact withir our lending business where the

rising interest rates are felt more closely, and we

rave the sbility 10 reduce the nurrber of :cars

we write, or alter the nse profle of our loars

trrough reducirg oar 0 vaiue ratios or pausing

activty 1 certarn garts of the rmarket saosld that

-
[

approprnats

cied to grow.

cinfiation were 1o norease, the



Chief Executive’'s review

Current trading and outlook
Sirce the year end. the Group has continued o
perform steadily frorm an operatio
and in re with our expectalons albet we

na. perspeciive
higve

seen share price growth aread of arget due to the

gy rICe

e A
LaThuap Gver

continued increaze i tong term ener
foracasts.
the

W2

Cur growth targets or the
Tiediurn and .ong term remiain uncharged. and
contriug to focus on mantain Ng a diversited

nusiness that s capatle o
sredictable growth for sharenclgers,

f deoverirg more

Tne recertlyy announced Electricity Generator Levy
EGL wathur the 2023 F
mpact on the returns generated fromn our erergy

inar<e Biil, wili have an

poriicio over the ne
sed ntne group finance

=Xt 5 years, This s further

discus revew on page 27

Our properly lending DLsIness Ccontinuegs o
trongly, with increased deployment in this
sector since the year end We focus on shorl terr

nerform g

Dans lour average current loan term s 17 months;
wrich enables us to adapt to changes in outlook
swiftly, we feel this s particularly important in the

current economic climate

Parformance ir our healihcare division conunues

to p2 stabie, and we connnue o remain positive

about the opporturities © improve performance in

thiz sector

r eng, we have contnued to buld out our
fibre ne Eworks with constructinn tracking n line
with our expectations. We continue to review
ogpertunities for both organic and irorgaric
growth sioporting our exishing managerrent (earms
i~ defvering this strategy

ir: Cecember 2022 we have acquired t-e rights o
f25m of right t© use mobile [dcerses fro
UK, thus

mobile virtuat network cperator,

m Tnree
rraking the frsistep towards becoming an

Car mix o bus as nas developed over

and may evolve furtner over the years ahead, dnven

by the overarcnng imporiarce plgce on

olders This
esaie

. butasaz

est are, ume

rmeating the objactives of our share

should not ke read as any indwcation of & who

change in the sectors N whicn we operate
ref.ection of the role played oy the strateqg

mandate in orotecting skarehiclders nierests.

“Qur mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance
What we do

tern Trading Limited ("Ferm’ company
of nearly 320 subsdiaries {together the "Group’] Our

Grodp operates acress five key areas energy,
, fiore and house

the past tweive years we have bult 2 carefully

hezitrcare, lending wiiding Over

o

diversited growp of operating busiriesses that are
well postioned to deliver long-terns value and
prediciable growth for cur shareholders

1. Energy division

We generate power from sustairable source: ard
sell the energy produced eithier directy o industria:
consumers or to large networks, Many of our

recewable energy sites quaify for government
InCer T\ VE S, which IPDrﬂ)GﬂZ ar dﬁdlﬁ(ﬂ al source o
Income. We rave also utilised our expertise 1
rerewabie energy o construct faciitles for sale o
ONGGINg cpera

o At year end the Group had

21 s3es unaer Consruclion

2. Healthcare division

We provide homes and laisure facilities o our
ageing ponulation, and private hospitals which
provide highi-gua by healihcare serv
operatioral sites in the UX

3. Lending division

we lend on a short ard medium term, secured
0asIs 10 &
We also pros

=¢5 onals.

g@ n.mber of propery pre’
e financing to enable atr.

12T DUSINess

to oulic assets and other residentizl and
comimercial praperties

4. Fibre division

We own ang operate fibre broadband netwerks
acrcss various areas of the UK Wa buils the

i networks and cennect them ¢ heres and

DUSINESSSs 0 LoV de oUr customers with wltrafast

fibre broadband.

5. Home building division
DoDuring te year, we successfully entered the house
buldng secior, acquiring Eliv'a Homes which has a
i ostronig track record of deve.oping homes in 3
sustainanle marner. The company = & iLil-senag
property deveioper, mearirg it provide

from the design, to the engineering ard then fing’
construction 1o ensue the delivery of guality

Solar, wind,

biormass, Property lending, ' Retirement Ultrafast fibre Residential house
) developrment villages, private broadband across o
landfilt gas, financin hospitals the: UK building
reserve power 9 P

o o

e
fw« g
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Our business at a glance

The srength of our Group's strategy s in both its I pusimesses with comprenensive tusiness plars ang
operztiona. diversity and the retun proie of nese SIroNg Ma rmgemer‘t teams, This erables us to
TLsinesses. Our lending pusiress provides flexibinty 1 contnue o diversfy our business without

and strong retrms over the short i, wihile our cofr.pfom‘sir‘.g ontre gualty o our operations
energy, Neatthcare, fibre and harme buid ng i Over tre past three years, we have saccessfully

divisions offer v aisilty and stabilivy of retunsg over enwered the fibre broacband sector and we Now

the longer term. OWN Sk comparies with exciting plans to det ver

L ultrafast broadband across the UK
The cale of our business i3 a key strength, erabing

T O acguitre arge-scale € ab! sheo operations as

u')

well as the oprorunity 10 ener new sectors with

mirsmal 7isk 1o the wnole Group by salecting

- Healtncare 1%

Sector split’

Wno 22% -,

Propey 7%

Fern's sector
atlocation

- Reserve power 2%
- Solar 1%
~--Fibre 5%
Solar 20% -~
-Healthcars 4%

Reserve power 6% - - Larchll gas ana biomass 9%

Oher 34

M B Owning and operating assets 69%
BM#® Lending 31%

Sector sphi is giver by value, as represeried on the comipany ba'ance shaet of Zern Trading Lirnited
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Our business at a glance :

Where we operate

We are proud that the businesses

within cur Group make a posiive

contributinn to society, from

gere-ating clean ergrgy o the /)\

creation of homes and the provision

of guality nealtncare nfrastructure. /‘\

_5,—

W

R

ey
b

O A

Wing farrrs

Resarve powear planis

Rerremert villages

ORFE Y-

7

11
30
5
S
0

)
5]
<
A
is)

AS we'vE Grownr Our BXpertise in fhese secions in the L we'lve D sur (ndustry knowiedge o 1
take oUr expertse b excIling SRLoriuniies ovarseas, ni.LGng Consirucing soigc and wird farms in i

Austraha, France, Iretard, Poland ang Sinlanc
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Our business at a glance

Malding a difference
We are proud tc operate a Group that maxes a
positive contrbut on to socety across the UK,

generatrg renewable energy, providng auality

lvrg and

-

nfrastructure and retirernent
Creadband 1o unde

eaithcare

delvering hign-speed served

areas of the country

Energy
We currently owr 220 energy sies, C‘-’CdLJCEﬁg
5 75GW a year That's enougn energy 1o

a rilicr homes

POower over

Cur comonation of technologies solar, wnd,
dfilt gas
hieping the U< o

specive of the wezatner

. S'omass ard lar

each onmer well,

3
4]
@

its enargy targets rre

The Fern Community Funds a socia: enterprise ru
oy the Groun, whicn waorks 1o disribute community
funds genesated from our wand farrs. This year, trée
has
cormmunity groups, supported 13 fccal university
siuderts through cur Student Scnolarship Fund,
ard provided a w rter fuel subsidy to 706 resicents
o tre Group's assefs

Fern Cormunity Fund awarded —1.4m o oca.

who ae local o

Healthcare

Qur retirement vllages provide high-quality,
contempcorary Lving spaces, with 373
accommodaton units currently in place, and
schemes in vanous stages of develoomen: offering

over 500 additional accommeagation units

A friendty community s at the heart of our
retrerrent villages, whicrias winy 1in cur
developmenis we provide central facilties and &
nub of socsal activity for our residents

Lending

The loans we made durirg the year have helped ta

fund the constructon of student accermmodation
and much rneeded resicential pregerties.

We continue to extend loans to 24 tax drivers and
flects to eranle them to use electric vehicles

reducing carbon emissions in our cap tal,

Fibre

Through our fibre division we are bulding cut the

Abre optic broadband network across the GK. Four

e on

bullding out fore optic broadband netwaorks for
and a

deliver er .tﬂ'p’ se

of cur management teams are focus
residential custorers and smrall businesses,
Afth s cwiding a fiore netwerk to
connectivity Our sixth is a

company operagting ir the fibre sector

sofiware developmen
and

provid g 36 vICEs 1O Our group COMmpanies

Withir tnis divis on we have plans 1o create a
retwork providing cornectivity to ovar one million
rmary of wh.ch

are in small towns a~d vilages that don't currently

properies 1 the next three years,
have access to internet connectivity ft for modern

ways of workng ard communicating.

Not only are cur fibre businesses tnrging
connectivity (o ungerserveg commurines, they are
alzo generating employment opportunines for

uals via traiming academies and
scnemes, and are driving diversity 1n
3, with one of cur compan
number of Initia

YouUng Indivi
apprem:,icesm

Telecor

ecom

es having

launched & LVES TO recruis wormen

nte tine seclor,

Home building

Our home building division utlises a h'gh
proportion of sustainable tmber frame construction
methiods and installs air source heat purps in at
properues, leacing the way in ths sector and
helping reduce carbon emissions.
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Our strategy in focus

Chur businesses

Energy

Througn cur energy division, the Croup ow"s and
operates energy s es which suppiy gas ard
aleciricity \nto the retwork, gs weil as constructing
CCf the 220
energy sites that we own and operate, 194 provide

renewahle energy sites for future cale
recawab.e energy. conrbuling 1o the Group's
positiort as one of the largest producers of
renewable energy from corrmercia sca.e solar sies
in the JK. Energy sites are typically expected to
generate stacle profits for many years, as such

these busiresses s atractve

own.ng anc coeratin
to the Group ke
pregictable profts

calise of ther potertai to delver

over the lorg term

Rencwanle energy sites cenerate powsar from

5
sustainanle sources end el energy producced either
directly o large imdustnal Censumers o to the
neswork, Many of our renewatle energy sites alsc
quaify for go

rrmaEnt Incentves, whiehn resuts in a

portion of the gen@ai@d energy beneft ng from

rates that are wocked n'for a spe

cihied period cnce
aualifying s te g operat’'onal and acareditat on has
eon graried This ha

CTC\J

reduced some of the impact
of tre valatiby in :6mg~'e"‘ﬂ energy price forecasts
As now sites built in

¢ UK do not guall'y for

0

storic government ncent ves, we are

secng more
rtorest N the market for sites hke the ones

5WeE oW

d operate

It

Owining and ooerat.ng energy sites 's a core part of
our strategy and currenty makes us amost 60% of

Ly
the Group's ret assets This part cf Gur Group nas

Did you know?

gererated higrer returns INis year than expected
has tne

due to rmarket conditiors but crucially t

potertial to provide stasle returrs over the long-

term Thes combinanon & «ey o our strategy o

batance risk and returm aoross ine range of Group

activitias to gencrate target returns for shareholders
“"Qur energy sites generated over

3,750 GWh of power.”

Doe to the hig

are aole to szcure lorg-terme inancing frer

gr-quality ensrgy sites we own, we

M ASTrear bar<s at compe!l uve rates o enniiance
cur retarns, which ~elps us to celiver the leve: of
returns our shiareholders exoect

While our renewsable eneqay business started lfe i
e solar enargy sector tne Group %a; Lelt

experuse across other aujufuwt technologes
{includ ng orshore wing, biomass and landfil gas
{osupportad "oy !

backuo power o the Mat anal Gric Tne Grous

serve power plants whicn provide
trerafore berneits from diversificanon within this
part of its pusiness, sirce weaker condinons for
energy produ‘c
in stromaer product

ion from ore iechnoiogy often resilt
on elsewhere Trne Groaup aiso

15 scale in th s sector

gains significant beneht from

=

h

a5 OUr Su3Mess S soread across over 220 aites
Group profitat lity 1if one

site suffers ar operat onal clgrupton

vastly reducig the nisk ©

If laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

I addition @ our UK sites, the Group 1s cevaeioping
Sites overseas, injurisdict ons that we angerstand
well, These present an atlrachive opporturiiy as tney
buld on cur seclor expertbice i countr es at an
earlier stage of renewable develooment. Currently
we aperate wind farms .nirelard and -rance and
soiar sites .n Frarce and Ausiralia. We have severa.
wind sites under construction in Poland, Frarce

and Austraus

we acquired nine reserve powsT
one energy from wasie site. Following
clion, we sold twe wind farms in Fin and and
aiso sold Barington

stralia

corsiru
stortly after the year end we
Point, a large solar site in Au

Healthcare
are division, tne Group
ang retirement iving

Through our nealthic
cperaesn tine private med cat
sectors. Our relrement Lving business, Rangeford,
Cwrs and opers

Wiltsrire and Nort

ates two retirement villages in
fYorkshire and s currenty
developma three furiher sites for fulure opaerations,

Ore Healthcare owns

and operates two private nospitals in Kent and
Herfordshire, providing the very best level of care

L well equipped hespita: facilities,

Cur private med-cal business,

nomodern

Singe returning i normal working patterns we have

seen an increase In the rumber of gatients payirg

far ther swn treaiment as t'ﬂey face lorg waiting

usts for NHS treatment Despile the iIfung of
videspread restrictions across the UK, Covia-19

les w0 affect the acu tor wih a

conting < care sec

stressed

NS and roreasec :rw;‘ectmm Tortro,

Tieasures that remam ir place,

Lending
Lendirg continuss 1o be

a core part of our business

and nas prov ded the Group with 2 profitable and

ash generatve saclor over the past twelve years.

Trus well-established part of our Group maimniy

consats of property lending, which prov'des
nort-term financing to experienced professiona.

oroperty developers, buy-t

oridging firance; and devecprent financirg,

rt ard mediwm term financing

o-let landicrds seeking
which proviges sh
to cormpames

neft of the sc
s that we hiave buit

A key ale of our Group and of the

ousing Up ir trs 3@CTor 1S our
o mitigate nsk throug~ having a large

of short and medium term lcans spread
across smaH projects to indvidust borrowers, We
nage countersarsty nsks through
ref

L borrower due ditigence, taking

“Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.
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Our strategy in focus

se umy over assets tyoicaily o a first charge b

nd mamta.n ng conse vative toan-to-value ralios

ot al foarns will pecform as expecied and hese

1’.\)

=

measures help © Timimese the impact of
performarce issues or anindividual loan Trss
furtrer mitigatec througn the value that we lano o
individual borrowers,
whiich s currently spread

loans, with

relzive o our total loan bhoo

=

on averz
an average mowidual loar of

Fibre division
Our fibre division includes five ogerational
cormpanies building fibre networks in the UK anc

one software developmert company

tribre busn
builchng riew physical fibre netwaorks for

Torougn odr res dentat

comrurities 1n the UK and 30 far have buill out

fibre infrastructure in urnderserved paris of Devon.
somerset, Dorse:, Witshire, Hampshire,
Worcestershire ano tne Home Countes. We ar

rring to pass over one milion homes over the

next three years,
Buiiding
large datacentres

these large networds nvolves connecting
ana telepnone excranges In the

Uwith homes and businesses, effectively

reclac ng the copoer wres tnat were laid i the fAirst

haf of the 20th certury Jurassic, Swish and
Tiganet are verticaliy integrated, as they noth awn
the Fore infrastructiure and also have the end

custamer relalonsihip a3 e INtermel service

prov.der or ISP Allooints owns fibre infrastruciure
ard will ontoard other 1SPs 1o the Allpoints network

to =gl connectivity 0 the end custorrer

Thre

ugh Vorboss, we are bu lding a network in

Lo~don to supply busingss-ro-business ("B287)
ariterprise conrectiv iy direct to busires
custoimers, Vorboss has installed over 50ukm of
fibre cotic canles :n Londen since 2020 and haz

recenty laurched a single 10Ghos product to

rnar<et, recogn sing that amoiious London

nusiresses wil quickiy

ney've relie

uire more than the 1Ghps

cornectivity t Coor to date

= ceen rapid growth in cur fibre dhvision

18 and we expect this divicion to continue

Te & larger nart of our business over UMme
Lo expects *o spend acproximataly £1bn of
Loy 2025 o fulfil its build pians ard resch
more communites ir need of ultrafast broadband,

Home building

Cur mew hormie oullding business, Elivia is a Tull
service housetunacr, acquiring land, develop ng the
e, and subseguentty selling the homes W
md vidua buyers. Trese sites inciude a m x of oben
market ard afordakie houses and strive to deliver
[ty aspraucna: hormes Tne $usness is
annual turrover of

ryear forecaste
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Paud Latham © -0 0

Paul -5 Chef Execunve of Ferr and § responsible for the gay-te-cay running of the
pusiress. He is also a fﬂamaqhﬂ director of Octopus Investiments Lirited (017,
where he nas worked snce 2005 Qs a key suoplier of rescurce and expertise
to Ferr Paul's dual role ensures that this relationshug works effecteely and n the
pest interests of Fern's sharenolders. Paul has had various cenerat rnanagement

and internal consultng roles across a number of sectors and onngs with 7im

a wealth of rdusiry and business esperence.,

Bmmg o ™ Helth Willey o “oouve U

i & Kegh iz an assocate professor of strategy ang entrepreneurship at London
s School He also houds varous non-executive drectorships and advisory
roles at high growth ard more matare companies. I his rale as non-executive
chairman e is respons kle for the effectve operation of the Board, as well
as its governance He brngs to the Fern business independent commercial
experience gamed frorm his tme ir academia, private ecuity investment,

consuting and various fands-on operatioral roles.

Beter Barlow . oL s ey

hol

eter has over 30 years experence N internaticnal firancing of infrastructure and energy.
As a senior executive for international Power, Peter was responsible for arranging over
S120m of project and corporate funding, as well as pan<ing sglationships and freasury
activiies. He naz spent over 20 years working internationaidy ‘or HSBC, Bank of
Armenca and Nomura, financing acquisitions and greenfeld projects in the energy
and infrastructure sectors. His comoinaton of Baard-level financing anc emergy
exXpenonce over NUIMEerous energy sub-seciers, anc his allbround knowledge of
all the seciers it which Fern oparates, adds S\gmﬁcaﬂt value to the operation of
the Board as well as 1s stralegy formation and deployment

Thm Brthur oo Lner P e

Tim is a chartered accountant with more thar 25 years' international exparierce

as a finance cirector of botn puslic ang private compames, i tially he worked

for Pnice Waterhouse in Birrmingham and Ch.cago. Maore recently he was Chef

Financial Cfficer of Lightzource Rerewable Energy Ltd, @ glokatl leacer in thae
fundirg, cevelcpment and long-terr operauon of sotar photovoltaic proects

T brings extersive financigt and accountancy knowledss o the Goard as
weli as an understanding of dynamic techno.ogy tusinesses gaimed from hig

exeCuiive positions
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Primcipal risks
M

iagement identify, 3

Q_A

N

which are inherent cormmercial risks i1 the market,
and om operatioral risks contained within the
systems ard processes employed withn the
Busiress. Querall risk exposure iz managad across
the Group through the diversification of acivit'es,

both by sector and geography.

Risk

Market rlsk
The energy sector is experencing
sigruticans urbuience and there is
arisk that forecast levels of inccme
are not acnieved due to cnanges ir
wholasale energy prices, off-take
COMTracis or governmer: suosidies,
Due ¢ ks turbulent envisenment,
the ootental for ncressed

inte: ton By the regulator 1s asc
arisk

Cnanges in Covernment policy

roay esult nreducedircome
sireanns within the grous due to

agd:hicral levi

Operational risk:
Leveic of energy produced may
e lower than articipatec due to
sLb-optmal weainer condinons
or perfermance ssuss with
equigrnent, which may result in
sigrif cam* l,rpwm'ﬁe dowmvre,
Fmancual risk:
Revenues (from energy
cenerahon] or sale proceads
From tne zal=
fram overseas sites ar2 lower inan

expeciad oue Jabhons r

fareigr exchian

Construction risk:
Cencrucior of the simes taces
WONGer 07 5 rriore costiy
art apated due 1o rescurce
ava-acilty orincreased cost of
HERS

an sess ard manage risks
soclated with the Groug's busine
strategy. Risks arnse from external sourcas, those

M:tlgations

S o

« Lrprad

I The principa. ns<s that the Group are Dxpc sed to

ss cbyjectves ard are descrised telow, alorg witrm the mitigating
actions we take tc reduce the oorentia  mrpact of
Iotie nsk We aiso Incluce aur azsescment of whether
P ome likelinood of ine nsk has ircreased, decreased

or remaired the same

Change

R T © renan wnn ameadam WRakERE aSEIN San

AAAAAAA CoSAUMBEIITAAT B ¢ v L Y ook b kekeahaRT IR NL T o 40

o Contracts are eﬁwﬂred [akte] wh"'h fx Lh'— ncore for g

porucn of tre energy generated oy our sies

« Long-term governmen: bacred offtake agreements are

N olace, such as Reriewable Coligation Cers fication
URGCT seheme. 30% of our energy mcome was
gaeneraied frorm ROC revenue %

= We engage with the government and the Office of Gas and

Electroity Markets {OFGEMT) to contrioute 1o anindus / vQICE
Wi polCy makers who set future requiatery requiremert

Increased
{due 1o rearket
irstanility

ctabli t/ ot the weather s mitigated H”rf) 1
diversificetion of technelogizs a1d iocation of sites.

- Regularservicing of assets s undertaken to ensure assets g

are <eptin good condtion ard Timirmiza the nisk ihat

N
a35ets are unavailakle for a wonger periad 1O chan

asmall portion ¢ tne Group's

EMENT ensdres ony C
nd revernes are expected 10 o8 derives from
2as sites d%

ncregsed (cue
towvolatle BX
noveran sl

The Groun enters fixed price conracts will contranions
wihere aporopna‘e 12 reduce expos Jre 'o 1Ingreasng costs ot




Risk M;tlgatlons Change

Market risk: ¢ Manggement reg; Ju,ﬂy reviews the compettive \aﬂd;capr-
Expected sa'es from costomrers in target build areas to ensure plans do not confict with
are lower thar ant'cigated cLe to other allernatve nehwoark Operatons.
roreased compelit on fror otne” » Manageriert engagos oroactively with tre Office of
DIOVICETS Communicatiors and the Goverrnmen: {2 ensare tha *%
- ~F o N e
A changes in policy oy the beriehts of smatler cperators are weil undersiood and its Ingreased
eguiators i favour of large HLelesly ate gppronriately represented \due to more
reguistors ir favour of laroer IO
o We are an active partcipant in relevantindustry bodies, COmMpPelions in
operstors could impact our abitiy e ae P pa ati Lstry D the market]
N | . . particularly those reprosenting sltermative network
tc deliver plannec developrnent, ;
- _ OOeraiors.
reducing revenues and effic’encias
gained ‘ram a larger presence irt @
particula- area
Construction risk: « The C.roup has cortracies with a rumoe’ of different
Constraction oF 78 Neiwor sdpplers to reduce the exposure to any ore ndmizdal
takes longer or ‘s more Costly entity Selection of outsoutce partne s s Marages increased (dae
than aruc |patod due to resource through a detaied procurerment process with Iong term té) InCreasing
hulity of » e . o ) emand for
avallability or increased cost of visthulity of work allowing partrers t¢ plan inancial and P
raw materials. people rezources accordirgly. the sector as
e Wnere supply cham croblems are expecied for critcal alternatve
iterms our tearns generally have 6 months stock of Sore, 'T‘“TJ\«C.I"(
providers scale
duct and other materia:s on hard, and advance crder Baildd
te”%m lequs pmem w.tk‘ lu’-g Qad t|rr es,
Operational risk: . Our networks are le' It a resillent way with diverse
etwerk service 1s nierrupted of route opuons should a falure Cocurin one route B
. . . - . : . P
unrel:aole leading to potents, 1555 This, combined with an andity toidentfy and resove Mo of
; o crhan
of custorrers ard reputatonal conrectivity ssues guickly, rmnimises downtime of the @ crange

darnage networks,

T
o "

S e
Eh%;g e T
% teznh?«h&&xwﬁ. oy
%‘%@%‘égﬁﬁé&&:@?iki&i 2ot
SRt
Hebe i

3

5 =
ettt e 1%
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk Mltlgatlons Change

Market risk: . F'weg teams pro-actively manage our positan n the

Ircreasng inflation and nteres: marketpace and are D'E”E'eq to enforoe where needed f

rates lead T 5 market-wide & loan moves i defa

affordability ssue, resuliing 10 a » Qurloans are made at fors(:rvqﬁff toan-ww-value LTV} s
drop In prooerty vailss across all ratos with a maxmum LTY of 70%

, N cnarge
sectors cf real estate, This may : =z

imgoact our abiiity 10 recover a
oan in full through a refinance

or Jate

Counterparty rlsk » Loans are secured agat Jt Df"y‘lf‘a; LMaeriying securty,

Loans rmay be made t ansuitabls ich asacha ver the property or other assets of the

countarparties, impacting odr borrower These are typicatly o a lirst charga basis o

abilty to recover the lcan baance SAsUre Maxamum chance of recovery shoula erfarcemert

ir full. actor be neeced

o Therougr due diigerce s perforned prnor 16w ung -

wwans, including property o land valaaticns and credis ECOnoMiC
~hacks done on borrowers cimate:

« Where loars zre wiitten for assets urnider consiru
Mmiestones and Covenants are out in place to ensure
furthier drawdd

nplete pnor o re

Market risk (Healthcare and . Ptaﬂmng consents on undeveloped land ara o“wrmfed Kel

Home Building): maxrm se revenues and reduce the rskof losses on sals.

A fall in bouse prices could . o
Ncreased (due

rmoact Gur aoiity 1o gensarate B ametable

expected reverue from the szie BIOrorIC

Of apartments in our retirement chmae

villages ar.d nouses buit by

Construction risk (Healthcare

The Group ente ed orice conracts whers approonate

and Home Building}): to reduce exposure 1o noreasing mater ai costs.
Ceonstrucuon takes lenger of ¢ Tne Group only works witn reputab.e 5:d paries wath 5 s
s more costy than anto.pated strong track record of delverirng srmar crojects NG cnarnes

due "0 rescurce av a\‘ab iy O

noreases bo tof raw naterials

Health and Safety rlsk « The Grodao maniane rocust colicies ard procedu

{Healthcare): retating to the prov sion of rredical services. We review this

Tne grevent.on of Imjury or tarougn conduct rg regular ing Lm:l rspect ons, ana a e
avoudal:e oss of Ife of our alsc sub ert o externai iNspectors £5
patertsis of utrmast imoartance + The Group has insurance colic £s1n pla

a~d s cntcal o mantainirg a fnancial josses aue w nedical ma Noy
c

Y

oed reputaton. Lingaten as
result ¢f med'ca. malgractice
coud resullin damage o

n uta\f\r anc imore
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Market risk: .
Arincrease ‘'n base rates may
increase costs on debt facilities,

Irmpacting e Crouag’s abi lty to
service debt az i falls due

Liquidity risk: .
Pcor manage~ert of cash within

the Groug could impact the

Group's abity @0 mee: obligations

as they fall due .
Health and Safety risk: .

Tre safety of our employess

anc those emiployed tarough

cantracts are of paramount .

rnportance There s & ns< that
acciderts In the workplace could
E\ult IN serous \rwrv or death

Cyber Securlty rlsk »
An attack on our IT systems and

data could iead o disruption

of our operationg ana loss of .
castomer data Loss or rmisug

of data may resuli n reputm:onai
camage, regulatory acton under -
GDFR and potential fines.

The sirategec renort wa

PS Latham
Director
16 Decemper 2022

approved Dy the Board of Direciors on 16 December 2042 and signed o

Change

Where floating rate dept s in place iwhere interest vares
i ine with an underlying benchmark rate), the Graup
erters irto hedaing arrangements to fix s poruon of these
pavments throughout the terrr of the facil ty Hedging
arrangaments are cutlned in Mote 21 of the finanacial
staterr emtc

A detaled cash fiow forecast is oregared and rev ewed
by rranagement an a monthiy basis, incorporating cath
availabiloy andg cast requirements across the Group. On at
least 2 quarteriy basis this s sharea witn the Board,

The Group mronitcrs bark yovamrh on an crgomg basis
o ensure conunued adinerence o covenants Wnere
covenants can't be met, forecasts are updated for the
lower cash availzbie g5 a result of the resriction

The Group has a flexicie firance faciuty which carn be
drawn or at short notice ' meelimmediate business
reeds.

fooe]
ER

Mo change

We have d 1 Xele ed fobust I"fulth aﬂd :df"ﬂtj’ polcies in
complance with ISCA500L across the Growp to ensure
the wel-teng of cur staff.

Heautr ana safety traiming is provides o our staff and
contractors on a -egular bas's

We emp .oy a Chief Informat.cn Securlty /ﬁ\ er'C \SO“"
whio i responsibe for data securnly across the Group and
recorts guartery to trne Board

The CISO works closely with our businesses to
adeqguate standards of security ang information
management are Mmet

tack of our businesses that nold custorne data has ther
GWI dcdwcat«:d resource for Ta J ecurty

SRR
o

ensure
No change

ars its behalf oy

LodEE
srxrEsidneiia

s
EE
%ss

SRR SRR LR R Pk ot R €
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3 GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance

Section 172 (1) statement
The Board congider that they have adhered o the
reguirements of secuon 172 of the Compan es Act
2006 {the "Act’), and nave. in good faith, aced n a
way that woula be most likely to oromote the

success of the Sroup ‘or the benefit of its members

aving regard (o all s noders and
matters set out in section 172/15-7) of the Act)
o

in the decisions taken during the year ended

in the performance of is duty to gromaote the

e oup, the Board has regara o a
number of matters, inciuding the lely
consequance of any decisions i the long @rm, and

listens to tne views of tre Group's key sta<eholders

< build trust and ensure it fully understands the
potential impacts of the decsizns it makes. Tre
Soard fulfis thece auties partly by delegation o
committees and the bosrds of subsid ary
indertakings, wno operate withun a corporate
o

varnarce framework across the Group

view Of heslth anc

I=
—
3%}
<
[$]
-3
=
o
o
m
J_
3
i
n
-
]
e}

55 the gmup financiat and operat.oral

perforfnar:ce as well as legal and requlatory

COMELENCE 5 Lnderaken
rare

W
=
Q)

n
o
@
=
5
M
8]
O
=
Hy
O

irclucing the Group's Dusiness stra{egy key rske
stakeholder-related matters, dversity and n":.u:mty
ervirgnmental matters, corporate responsicu ty, and

. compiance and wegal matters.

Principal decisions
We define prim¢'pat decisions taken ny t~e Board az
thaose decisiors tnat are ¢f a strateg'c nature ard

that are sigrnthcant 1o ary of cur key stakeroder

groups ke Board consiger trat the follownng are

exaroles of orincinsl decisions t made in the year
e~ded 30 June 2022

» Evaluat =
I(TCI'ea'E‘r\g Y

our renewables ¢ivson in August 2021 tne

fedbkaban

Group acauired a large scele, ready @ corstruct
wind site 1 Australia This depioyment aligns
with thie Group's stralegy 10 Cconlirue o

develop renewable erergy shes which grovide

predictaky e, long-term revenue streams. The
Board considered the opporwrity and row it
aligned with our objectves o ma<e a peitve

contrinution (o the

T

cdeg o expand inc ol new

[

Tre Group d
diwvision, house bJI.dii"ig In May 2322 the Grout

I'e)

auired Ellviz nomes, a full-service oroperty

Q\

dfv@tf\per roviding services from the design,
to the eng neerirg and then final construciion
ic ensure tne delivery of guatity workmanship
Dwersifying the Group’s asset base ang entening
Nt thus new secior has oeen wel thought

out wath long term growtn mnd, The Board
asseszed the sfrategic coporturiues within the
sector before deqiding to move ahead wth tris
acquiswtion, consder rg how this woula impact
o)st.ng businesses within the div sior and how

it aligned with tre Group's stateqic objettives 1o

deliver long-ternm value and pre

oders

“tabie growth

r our share!

Reviewing anc decicing to moeve anezd wih
ncrezsing ciomass operations which iz part of

our renewab.es aivson. 1 October 2071 the
Group acqu d 'iarge scaie, waste-lo-eregy

censtruction ste in Scetard Thus de:‘lfvr”
aligns with the Troup's strategy 10 cortirue 1o
diversify the Groun, develop renaewable energy
sitec which orovige prec.clabie, long-term
reveriue streams, ang provids

whnlesale

9]

rcing charges rtre UK energy

rmarket ~he Board considered the cpoortunity

g1c how T2l gned At our

Make 3 postve conitution to the commun ty

Znd enyrarment

community and environment.
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SOVERNANCE

Corporate governance

« The board deciced to change audit irms via a
terder procass for the year ended 30 June 2022,
The Greup had changed significanty since the

cus auditors ted and therefore

nable 10 reliabiy asse e for

Three frms Lnderwen:

rev WEere appoin

We wers 5 thie valu

We recewed

L

roney
the tender process and errst & Young LLP were
seccied because of ther strong commercial
understardmg of our business, eficient auait

rmeatnodoloegy and value for money.

Business strategy

Qur business straiegy is set out on pages 11 o 14 of
the Strateqgic Report Marnagement prepares @
detaled Group budget whichs approved by the
Board on ar annual pasis and forms the
the Group's resource planming and deployment
decisions I making dec:sions concerning ine
ous riess plan, the Board nas regard first and
foremost o its strategic foous, bt also to other
nterests af its vanous

gus for

matters sucn as the
takehoiders and the lang-term impact of its

c;ions ontne Group s futdre and reputaton.

Shareholders

Sharehcloer relatons ard generating shareholcer
when the Beard 1=

ne prirme medium by

w il snarehclders

vallle 's a key comsiderat'on
making srategic Gecisons
which the Group commun.cates
is through the annual report and financia

Cwhich am o prov:de sharenolders with
cuvaes and i1

our website

statemients

a full understanding of the Group's @
results, Thnis information is published on

at www . ferntrading.com

Employees

The Group's erncloyees are fundarnerat to the
cverall success of the business The Directors fulfil
their duty to employees by entrusting oversight 1o
subsidary Boards which the Chie® Erecutive of the

Group atso sits on.

The directors of the sub
manage the day o day decision making,

sidhary undertakings

engageent and cornmurn:cations with er -\DIO_/GL—»

and ersure that people are treated faity and are

valuad with rezpect 1o pay, benefit anc conditions

We fuily realise that our employees wish to be
mformed and consulied on matters affecting ther
wOrs ana o be nvolved in prablenr-solving
affact s of nterest and
responsibility The Group s

P cood communical’s

ting therr own area

s irmly coremitied to a

o at all levels and we

Qohcy ot

alm to establisih a cimate which constanitly

encourages the cpen flow of informatior and
£3835 ’“reserﬂy trheg includes monthly team briefings

nd the publication cf rmaonthly key
irdicators covering cutput, aperatng
and safety

peﬁormarce
costs, and heach

Tne hezlth and safely of our emplayzes in the
igl focus for the Group, given

The Directars review

WOrKPECe 15 a continu
Its broad cperauonal
Health & %3 lffy Rep ortmg a. each board meeting (o
ensJre aporopriate polic nd grocedures are in
place to protect the heath ard safety of cur
srnpioyess and cortractors YWaere there are
cotentia. defciencies or 1ssues,
up and resclved on a tmely bas s, win the Board
hav ng overs ght of the actions taxzen

TUSINESS,

these are fol.owed

The Group ©
of certain cperatiorat acuvities 1o

cutsources activites ard management
external suppliers
Whiere activites are cutiourcec the 3oard encures
that they are rmanaged by reputable supphers whe
mreet all the relevant indusiry and regulatory
commitmerts as well as rreatirg empioyees fairly
Expected s
contracis and adh
moritored by Board trrcugh therr service
agreement with Octopus Investmerts Lirmited

andards are documented ir all service

erence to these are continually

Suppliers and customers

The Group acts in a farr manner wite all suppliers
and customers and seeks to manta nostrong
business relanonships with therm Thiz s achieved
by ali contracts being negotiated tareugh a fair and
iransparent tender process which includes

assessing the impact on the long-rerm objectives oF

PRASt: St
g AN

et
o %
1o
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—

=e Groud We review our payment processing
times against cortracts every six months to ensure
suppiiers are pad promptly and this irformatian for

the company 1s avalanie on the www.gov.uk

The Group ensures it acis fairly and in a transparent
os3 all dvisions an
Services, and actively enganges 1o resclve ary disputes
or defautts. The Boar

CISTOMers arrd

d closely monitors custormer

I
=
T 3
W
o)
>
/)
M
3
o
&
s}
)
)

with the managemen? team (¢
understand the 1ssues iF busimess paerformance does

not meet customers expectations

The Board considers Octopus \ﬂv%SU‘ﬁeFtS L rmded
1o be a key bosiness partner and
respcntiDility for the prov sion of

lr!

AOpher with
OReratonai
overs:ignt, financiat adimmisttation and camoary
secretanal services.

Community and environment

e provision and operat:on of susta-nable
INfrastructure s at the cenre of the Group's
strategic goals, Through its businiess acnvites e
Groud seeks to maxe a positive cortnbuicn 1o the
commiurity, envirenrment ard ecancmy Cur

renewable energy business is helping the UK mest

1S renewable energy targets, our private hospitas
Covd-12

atmert for non-Covig-19

nave suppcrted the bHS trroughout the C
pardernic py providing tre
MNHS patients that ctherv,

carned cut, and

vise codld not have been
cur fibre retwor< will give people
in rural commrunities access o miga-sneead

broadoand,

Business conduct
As Diregtors cur n
ENSUNNG Managemant Goe

ton s 1o oehave resgonsity,
e the business with

rregnty and N accordarce wi:h the righ stanoards

of co~duct emd govarnance expected of a busness
suzh as ours, Our ntertion through our ousiness
rrategy lowtlined o

ectors and work witt othr businesses that share

[

n pages 11to 14] is to operate n

%]

Gur values

Business ethics and governance
The Soard iz rezpons e for ensaring that the
activitizs of the Group and its vanous busnesses ae

conducied in comphance with tre law anc
applicatle governance and resulatory regimes. and
ir adherence with orevailing best practce for the
relevant industry. This includes review.rg nternal
controls, ensurng that there is an appropnate
balance of skit's and excernerce rapresenied on the
Board, and ensunng trat the firarcal statererts
give a true and fair v ew of the state of affars of the
Croup. Furtner detail can be found in the staterment
of arrectors responsib ites on gage 29 In
to 30 June 2

flagged n this regard.

i the year
22 NG areas of coraern have been

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

Trie Board's colicy on empioyee, harman tights.
social a~d comrmunity issuss, envirorment polcy
and anti-Corruoton ard bribery matters is ascussed
in e Directors Report on page 2% The Boaw
aclively promoies a o

or etnical values and ¢

porate culiure that is bhased

ehaviours.
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Beview of fnancial statements

The purpcse Cf this report iz 1o provige addiioras

I the share price and may no: reflect changes in the
exp@anatory informaton 01 the financial satements. 1 full market

value of asseie or busxnesse cwred by
7 reasuing our performarce, the francal

rmeasures that we use include tmose that nave been 4 . .
{A numrber of acquititiors were made during the

derived from our raported resclls 1 order 1o I . .
vear, INCluding nine operalcnal resere Dower s.1es,
elimingte factors that distort year-on-yaar : R
_ R ioa waste to emvg/ site under censtrucion, a
CoMmpanso Tnese are consideres non-GAAR :

¢ construction rezdy wind farm n Austraig and

finarcia, meas.res. :

Ioseventean solar rooftop stes under canstruct.or.

A reconcdiation of these to the firancial results can i oSnortly after the year ena. in July 2022, we scid
be fcund in note 28 of the notes to the finanaal i Darlington Parnt, a large solar site i Australia. ;
statements. P 5
“ I To supoort contnued expansion, we Pad ouilt up i
The financial statements siow assets at cost, a8 sucn | cash reserves af year end of £256m whicn ncluded i
they do not efiect the “uture value that we expecitc | 2 large casn inflow of £57m from placing external
derive from these tusingsses To that axtent i orefinancing n Barlingtor, Peirt onor (o sale 1
accouning performance may dif'er maternally from
(restated) Movement
2022 2021
£'000 £000 £000 %
48/@%9 711,830 425,302 286,528 6:7%
r_E' I DA 194 916 104 036 90,880 87%
Hoﬁt fl%s Jf—fore tax 47 604 (22 663) 7'4,267 210%
Lendmo t‘oﬂ' ’m:* r‘f orovis 360 901 385 512 124 611] [G¥S
256,415 172 478 84,9357 49%
793,169 599 440 0"3 /'Pr-‘ 13%
N@ a5sets 2 219 448 1 887 842 331 6 Bx

Financial performance t E425m) whicn was pradominantly drven by a 84%
Owveral, the Group has reporied a proft before tax of Increase in revenue witkin our energy division. This
£47.6m for the year ended 30 Jure 2022, wnich is 3

£70.3m imrprovement on the prior year (2021

£22 7m ioss restated) Overal' ERBITDA increased by
87% w© £195m (2021: £104rm restated;, which is
cnmarily due 1o increased energy generation as well

growtn s two fold, increased energy generation
frorn having owned/operated one of Sur DIGrMass
clants for the full vear and a large solar plant in
Australia reaching commissionng, a~d a signifizant
INcrease 1IN average energy orices over the year due

as increased energy prices to tne misrnaten bebween supply anc demand,
‘ ¥

‘ exacerbated by the angoirg conflict .n Ukramne,
Reverue incragsed by £287m to £712m (2021 bated by onguirg conflict:n Ukran

‘Earrings bofore interest, tax, depreciguon and amaortisation
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Revende growth was strangest 1n our energy
aivision but we alse saw a rmarked improvernent in
revenue from our retirement vilages This part of
rded weil from the

lockdowns requiren by t~e Covid-19 pandam'c

QuUf DUSINESs mas reps

[850CNSE,
22%) and a
£204m

eting 41 units In the year {an increase of
nincreasng N revenus of £7.5m fo
(2021 E127rm)
Revenue from our lending division saw a deop of
25% o £42rn (207
loan cook ovar the year as cash was made availatle
o grow other parts of the business

1. £57m) due to a smatler average

Operating expenscs for the year were nine with
our expectations, with the nerease prrmarily driven
by noreased ooorating costs i cur iore divsion a:
it has expanged. Refnanang exlema debt (o
SECUTE IMprovec terms over the past two years nas
ntribt;ted toad
o L6

aoregse in interes. costs of £2 5

Included n the results ths year is & profit of £28m
recogrisced on the sale of two wird farrms in Finland
and a rea. sation of £1 6m of deferred consideration

ori solar sites said in previous years

Financial position

Continued shareholder irtarest and investment has
seen ret assets grow to B2 219m (2022 £1.888m

restated) in the year erdad 230 June 2022, we
issued 120m shares (2021 150m; for a total
consiceration of E204m {2021 £2, 317m] Thne
comoparabive year numbars incuce £2.993mr of
consiceraton relat ng to group restruciur rg

Met current aszens of £808m 2021 £657%m

have increased by £ 145, refiectirg toe reduction in

- restated)

extarrgl ﬁmar"cmg ang an INCreases in work in progres:
rthn the fibre ard hious

decreased © £42m (2021,
£347m) which nas been utl'sea alongside externat

operating activities

long-term financing and canita: raised by new share

iLsues o grow the ousiress. We have irvested
substantialy inte the fibre croadband sector over

Fowall require furtrer capita.

> past four years whic
expenditure over the next 3-5 years, .ncreasing our

diversificat.on across sectors

Of the cash hed at year end, £211m was neld in
our energy, home building anc fiore subsicianes,
where there are a numpoer of constructor ard

ture projects under way, reguinrg <
be readily availabe for stage

infrastruc
cayments dug in the
months after year end

Goode l, at £541m (2021 £567m restatec],
contruss to be a signibcant numper on the
halance sheet and arises on the acquistion of some
Cusiresses, Acouires businesses, for exaraple
renewdble energy s.tes, often nave a markel value
in excess of the compary's net assets, -eflecting

@ futare 1mcorre sireams. Accountirg

N recLires that only dentifiab.e assets are
riamed on the calarce shcet so the accounts
canino: record the balance of the additicnal marxet
vaiLe whch compnzes the future profts that sites

are expectec o deliver. Tre addiional value

e 5 of *he value of fixed assets themseiwes (such

as =eiar pansatss s recognised as gooawil.

Put simgly, the marset value of the energy
neneraion busiresses (or indeed any operegt oral
bus-resses) reflects the value of fuiure expected
assels

profts, notthe cost of simply buying tang ble

such as so.ar paneis o wind turpines We pay
market value for the sites we scoure, wh ch may
excend the value of identifatle assets sLeh as the
solar parels arc so generates goodwil, which
essentialy represens tne value of the exsecied
future income strearms, Goodwill recogn sed will
ar VT
Si

Lally bewritren off wypcslly over the tife of tre

as
e, as expecred refurms are ealised
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Sscior nerformance

Energy
As economic activity and global demand ircreased

(2021 £156m restated), partialy drven by increace

where £120m was incurred at our

througnout tire year, so oo dio whiclesale energy ¢ biomass sites and £%3m at cur reserve power dites,
prices, criven by movernents in commadity prices, the prices for raw matenals have increased, on

average, by 09% que to an increase in the supply
costs Tre comimed cost of sales for the reserve
power and biomass sites increased by £110m o
tel/m (2021 20/m)o it shiculd be noted that the
revenue generated oy the biomass and reserve

which resulted in the overall ncrease in revenue
earned across our enaergy sites Tnese market
factors have resulted :n anircrease in revenue of
8A% Lo £593 2021 £322m)

Corespondingly, =B TDA also ircreased by 112% o

ower sites increased by R194m dusng e year to
E26Em 12071 L126m restated] reflecting the F ‘ 4 - ¥

. . , f353m 2021 F161m)
s;gﬂﬂcant inCrease N energy revende, Overal otal

operating costs -roreased by EL30m o £327m

Fraoz2 FY2021 Fr2022 FY2021

Production Production External External

{(MWh) {(MWh) Availability Availability

g.omds O 1 050033 5&55# - e — e

cardhll Gas 240,226 256,526 97.9% Q7 6%

Reserve Power 403,355 141,036 94.2% 92.0%

554,858 517112 97.7% 56 0%

wWind 851,214 881,241 90.5% 93 ‘r“p
Total - ‘3099690 2682009

> e
4
R
e
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Healthcare

Feathcare cperations contriputed £46m

(2021 £42m) 1o Group reverues for the year
refiecting the impact of increased revenue n
Rangeford Sales of apartments at the retirement
villages have rebounced well frons the looxdowns
required by o2 Cowid-15 pandemc response,
seling 41 unis in the year (an narease of 52% from
2025) and mmcreasing revenus by E76m to £20 2m
{2021 £12.7m).

Lending

Feven.e from tending decreased by £1arm o 42

(021 £57m',l orimarily due to a smaller average

loan oo T 2022, wricn resulted r 3 cecreazed

revenue stream “or tre year The otal loan oook
Z6lm at the year erd (2021

£336m; This reduct'cnn the lean boo< enakles

ash o be avalable for cpoporanies

reducea oy 6% to

&CrOTs other

sectors within the ufOuF‘ rci HIzIng acguisitions ana

Astructior. Tre make-un of the lcan book «
shifted slightly whore we have ssuad a i ghe

number of smalier 1wans wthin the resigential
sector, as welt as mare larger lcans in the

developrent sectcr ana the commercia sector

EBETDA for the lending division decreased to 3 loss
EE 7 from a proft of nearly £1m n tre prior
vear. This movement reflects & orovision of £25m in
thie loan book against loans to reserve power sites
and a provision against g realthcare w0an o £14.

N the year to June 2022, £39m was provded

azainst (vars versus £A27moin 11e prior year

Fibre

As areanvely new division, al the fbre businesses

gre rthe bund pnase and are start ng to ade
f =

CUSISars o ther networks By 30 Jur

T
dwviz o had build cassed over 150,000 ~omes We

aniiciogt:

e ound Stagc to contnue o g further
!

3-% years
Atthougf

lzrge cpesaling expenses as the

3
busimesses scale their operations and develop
CCverall tre dwvision repored an
55 4m (2021 £23 .5 loss), which
150 lire with exgactzbiors ard ref.ects the

aeveloprnental stage of the division

As we build tnese networks oL the assers will ne
recogmised ©0 the balance shieest at cost which

c

carngT incude ‘uture vaiue which s expected 1o be
generated as the assets have beer inter-aly
generated This s differert to the share price where

tre future value exgected (o be generated rom the

Elivia bomes wa
trerefcre rad Jrred impadt on ke fingre al

s acquited in May 2022 ard has

o

performance during the vear The business

forecast to deiver £E78m reverniue and £6 S
EBITDA for the year endes 30 June 2023 Resus

fram the first quarter o 2023 indicate the basiness

15 broadly pesforrming in line wiln expectations

Funding and liquidity

Cr strategy £ to secure lorg-term Fnarcirg at
I conservative levels from mainsivearn barks (o
enhance reiurr s from our rerewable energy

busiresses. At year end we nag £1,0424m of
Y
ot finarcing with £441m of

I external projes
P oheaarcom ava Lab:

I

Tris erables us 'C gouire husineszes tnat the
P omgrket considers o have stabe characiensucs such
: as gredictable cost nase, revenue streams,

government INncentives or proven Eechnoiegy and as

Poslgh have lower returrs that without leverage would

be inzuffaient for cur sharerolaers. [ aisc allows us
flex bility i irararg our busnesses and ~anagme

¥ w2 ERIC;
cash flow We beteve that faling 1o adopt this

stra:egy wOud have a ~egative 1mpac: ar business

a
wirn and sharehglaer vaiue over the long term

Arrruxvrd’ﬂf E0% of our nterest cayable is Axed

and trerefore we are not wignifoarily axposed ©
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the current interest rate volatility We conunuaity
revienw fimarcing arrangemenis 1o ersure that they
are competitve and optimized for the needs of the
husiness To ensure cash is rMmaraged in an agile
rnanrier, we rnantain a flexible france faciaty

wrich can be drawn down o repaid o meet

immediate business needs

Looking ahead

The Groue has rebounded well from the effects of
the Covid-19 pandemic and has cutperformed
expectations. Whilst the current econom< outicox
challerge and uncertainty, we arntgipate
e

is one of ¢
mirima. impaci on cur results due
arns and cost base, and
cupled with the
55 the business,

9, V’E”ICY-EL'E revenue sire

essentzl nature of our activ tes, O

rat
diversification we have built up acro

we are poait:oned srrongly for these turbulent

time= ahiead

We continue to gay pariicuisr attent.on to the twn
chalenges of

inflaticr - both

rising interast rates and surging

in terms of lending ard portfo\:c
managemert These frends impact sil areas of the
Group's business and are Lkely to remain for the
foreseeable future, so we remain disciphred in our
rthe
stuatior carefully and taking a prudent approach to

investment agoroach, C.C'ﬁtlﬁuiﬂg O Mmoo

any current and emerging ricks.

We are positive about the continued opportanty
for growtn and continue 1o Lelieve that the
business s positoned weli to take advaniage ©
future growtn ooportunities a
d hiouse building

shed in the market and

arezs. Energy, lendng and
cperauons are well establs
cortinue to make exceilent progress with robust
parforrmances in the new financiai year. [n tire with
our planred strategy, since the year end we sold a
large solar farm in Australa for a sral profit, with
proceeds being redeployed into rnew opportuniues.

Deployment into fibre continues o ol out 1 lire
Group has now passed

e5 by our fiore networks,

eraamns

with expeciat:ons and the
than 156,000 hom
ctrvity In our healtncars civision ¢

more
Sales
strong, with nearly 40% of anrual sales bud
all sites as at

get
already completed or reserved across
the end of Septermoer

Arnounced within thie autumn state
the 2022 Finance Bilk, the UK G
levy ["Slectric

tas part of
overamert will
enact a 45% winafali ty Generator
Levy” or "EGLY) on whoiesale energy marke:
revenues In excess of £E75/MWn This is expected o
apply 10 the Group from 1 January 2023 to 31
March 2028 The exact legislation will be published
in m-d-Lecember 2022, but nased on the intial
ralegse an impact analysis has oean performed
as at 30 Septemoer 20‘_/..

tc e a drop in valuation of apgroxmatety £45m

le esurrate the impact

for the sites affected, whicn contributed to a

in the share crice t2 177.0p m

We cxpect 1o gererate strong coperating returns
from our estabiushed d visions for tne coming years,
N additicn 1o the anticipated outflows “or our
construction phase assets The nealthcare and

pre divisio phase r tine
with our lorg-term strategy and we anticipate

ns are wall into ther build

strong returns over tne next five 1o sever years

upon matunty

PS Latham
Director

16 Decem

cer 2022

M;Maﬁ
s

iy
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022 i

: '

For a summnary of the Group's resuits, refer to the P The Grodp's ogectives and policies on hirnancias risk g

Groug finance review on page 235, management including information on the :

The drrectors have not recommended payment of ExposUTe of the G"OUD o wredr rmi ity s ;

a didend (2021 £NIlL and market rizks are set out i note 21 to the :

‘ ' i financial statements. ‘ahe C roup’s principal risks ars i

S - set out in e strategic report on page 16 i

The drectors of the Company who were in cfice I, . S T VPP !

cduring the year and up to tre date of signing the P T ' o o 5

francial staterments were As permittec by secticn 414c (11 of the Comparies

IoACt 20086, the drectors nave elected o disclose

PS Lathare D irfarrrat or reguired to e in the directers report :

K3 Weley by Schedule 7 of the 'Large ard Meadium-sized

i Comrpanes and Groups (Accounts and Reports! ;

PG Barow Requlations 2008, n the strateqic report.

T Arthur fappointed 1 July 2022) . ;

Refer to note 23 in the Notes 1o the fimarcial § The 30ar0 recognises that a corporate culture

statermeants based on sound etrical vaiues and behaviours is an ]

Poazset, Tre Group erdeavours to conduct its {

" HOSe [T bus ress with ntegnty, ir an etrica: crofessional

Refer to the Strategic Renort an page & i and resporsible manrer, treating our employess,

cLslemers, supnlers and pariners with courfesy !

Ll T em o e i and respect g

Refer 1o the Strategic Report on page 12, . o . i i
STy o P Applicat ons for employmrent by dizaoled persor

Refer 1o the sector 172 staterrent on page 21, are given fult ardfar cons deation “or all |

T ovatancies having regard ta ther parucaar soutudes !

ard atitties S-ould a perscn becorre dis D[eg :

while = tre Groop's empioymert, every effarts :

made to retan e in errp zymc'*t gwirg

I ozltarnative traiming as necessary %
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Y R

We fully realise that our emcioyees wism o he

n‘crmed and consuited on matters affecting ther

work and to be irvclved in problem-solwing affecting

therr own areas of iInterest and responsib ity

The Groun s 9rmily comrmitied t0 a poticy of gooa
commLnication at all levels and we aim 1o ostabls

a clirate which constanty encouragas the open
flow of information and «deas. Fresenrtly ths
includes monthly team briefngs at 2 1oca: level and
thie publication of morthly key performance
Ncicators cov@rmg cutput, oerating costs and
heaill: and safety

The Group has in giace an agreement with OClepus
Investmerts Limited to prov de services to the
Groug covering operationa: oversigns,

agrninistration, comparny secretanal and company
accounting

The Roard acopted a formal environmental, social
and corporate governance "ESGT colicy o0

30 Septernber 2020 The Group recognises the
need © condactits business, i a manner that is

responsitie o the envirarment, wherever possiole,

As g low energy Js
to disclose date on its energy and carbon usage,
Fern Trading Limited is the only Company in the
Croup that meeats the reporting crifena and
therefore No information i3 pravided for the Group

er, the Company has elected not

as a whole

The Group's has an Ant-Bribery Policy which
introduced robust procedures o ensdre full
compliance witn the Bribery Act 2010 ang to ensure
that the nighest standards of professional ethical
conauct are rmaimtamead

In accordance with ine recommendatons of The LK
Corporate Governance Coae, the Soard has
considerad the arargements ir place to encourage
staff of e Group or manager of the Grous © raise
concerns, in conbcence, witnin ther crgarisaticn

about possicle imprepret e im matters of financ.al

reporting or other mattess Its satshed that adeguate

arrangaments are In place to allow an mdegendet
INnvestigauon, ard folow-cr achion where Necessary,
to take pace withr the grganisation.

We are commutted to actirg ethicaly and with:
integrty in all oLr business deal ngz ard
relatonships and o imslementing and enforaing
effectve systems and controls w ersure modarn
siavery 1s Nt aking place anywheres ir cur own
business or in any of our supply chamns, consisient
with cur obligarions under the Modern Slavery Act
2015 We expect the same high starndards from all
of our contraciors,
partners As par: of our contracting processes, we
expect our suppiiers 1o Zomply with the dern

supnDliers and otrer pusiness

Stavery Act 2015

The diractors are responsible for prepanng the
Annual Report and the financig! staterents in
accordance with applicable law and regulation

Compgany law requires the directors 0 prepare
financial statements for each finarcat year, Under
that aw the directors nave preparad the Group ard
Company financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Gernerally Acceprted Azcounting
Practice (Unted Kingdocm Accourting Standards,
comprising “RS 102 "The Financia! Reporting
Standard apslicable 'n the UK and Republic of
Ireland”, ard apphcabl
the directors must not approve the fimandcial

e law). Under company aw

statements unless they are salisfied that they give a
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

true and farr view af the state of affa rs of the Grou
and Companry and of tre profit or logs of the Groun
ard Company for that pericd. In preparing the

Anancal statements, the directors are reguired to

« select suitanle accounting pole

then consisiently,

s and then apply

a ments and accountng estimates that
are reasonable and orudent and
« prepare the fingro al staterments on the gong
concern bass urless s inapproprizte to

presurnes that the Group and Corparny watl

CONRUNUEe 1IN DUsin

Tr

(V]

arrectors are aiso resgonsible for safoguarding

5

thig asscts of the Group and Company and nonce
ia

(el

—
")
D
Q.
=

rectors are resocnaible for keeping adeal

accourtng records that are soffic ent 1o show and
cxplain the Group and Cermpany's transactions and
disclose witn cnanle a::uracy at any trme the
Greup and Company and
enab.e them to ensure tnat the Ananc al statements

comoiy with trie Companies Act 2006,

rea
financial posihion of the
o e

Tre drectors are resporibie for the maintenance

and integrity of the Comgany’'s weesite Legislation

N the dnited Kingd governing the oreparathon

m
and disserinauon o ﬁha merts may o fer

fromr egisianor nothe

b e bea bR B e anaen

As permitied by the Articles of Association, the
rectars have the benefit of an indemnity which is

[o

a quelifying third-garty incemrity provisio™ as

5.

Tre indemrity was 17 force throughout the last

financial year and s currently in force

n the case of eacn drector n office gt the date the
Jirectors’ Report s approved

e SO far a3 the crecior s aware, there 5 no relevant

aud:tt information of wh ch the Group ana

Company's auditors arc uraware, and

= they have taken all tne steps that they cughit
to have taker as a c‘srec.or I order 1o make
therrzelves aware of any relevant aud't

i thiat the Grow

are awae of tna

nformation and 1o esabiis ¥ieR=lals!

ompany's auditors tinformiztion

~oud cent
section 418 of

This confirmatior is given and 5 erpreed

1 accordance witn the provisions of <
the Comparies Act 2006

Erast & Young D LF having been appnainted in 222,
have indicated their wilingnzss to oe reappoinied
for anotrer ter~ and wiii be prOposed for re-

- seciion 485 of the

gpoomntmaent in accordance wit

Companies Ac: 2006
The Cirecters' ¢
Directors on 16 December 2022 ard signed on its

eport was approved by the Board of

benalf by,

PS Latham
irecior

16 Decernper 2022

defined oy section 234 of the Companies Act 2006,
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Lapinion
the inancial staterments of Fern
> Parerit Compamy') and ts

We nave audit
Trading Lirnited ('the
subsichanies {the Group'] for the year endea 20
June 2022 wk.ch compr sg the Grouo
Comprekenzive Income, the Group and Parerit

Company 3zlarce Sheet the Group Saternent of
Cash Flows, the Group and Parent Staterrent of

Fa
hargas in Equity aod the related notes 1 to 29,

-
-+

ncluding a surnmary <° significant accounting
nolicies The financal reporting framewaor tnat has
e

er applied 10 their preparaticon is applicable law

D'

and Uned Kingdom Accourtng Standards
mcludirg FRS 202 7
Standard azgpliceble ntne UK and Repubic of
(Urired K'ngdom Generally Accepted

e Finarciat Reportn \g
freland”
Accounting Pracricel.

n cur opinon, the inancial statements:

« give a true and “ar view of tre G
Parent Company's affarrs as at 30

Sroup’s and of the

June 20727 and
of the Groun's proft for tre year then ended;

» nave been properly prepared in accordance with

Urnired Kingdorr Gererally Accepted Accounting
Pracuce; and

prepared in accordance with the
omipanies ACt 2006

» have bhes
requairements of the C

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit n accordance with
Internanioral Standards on Auditing (JK) (1SAs (UK}
and applicable law. Our responsikilities under those
stardards are further descrbed in the Auditor's
responsiBilites for the audt of the financial

secton of our report We are
nt of the Group in accordance witn the

staterments
independe

elnical recuirenrants that are relevant 10 our audi of

the finarcial state

FRC's —thical Stand
other eth-cai respo
these requirement

nts i the UK, including the
1, and we have fu.filled our
rsiilit-es i accordance with

Ve i

taternent of

We believe that the audit eviderce we have
obtzined is sufficient and approprate to provide &
DaE5Is For OuUr ORINIon.

Conclusions relating to going concern

diting the financ al staterments, we have
conciuded that the directors’ use of the gairg

G ir the preparation ©f

concern baus of account:s
tre fnancial siatements K approprate.

Based on the work we nave performec, we nave
not identufed any rnaterai unce-anties relating o
events or corditiors that individually or collectively,
ray cast sigrifcant doust or the Group and Parent
Company's apilty 1o contnue as @ Joing concearn
for g period of twewve rmonths from when thea

finarcial statements are authorsed for issue

Our respensibilit es and the responst liies of

tre drectors with respect w0 going concern

are gescribeq ir the relevart sectong of this
repors. However, because not all future events or

! i ot tisnota

guaranee as to the Group's adilty to coninue as a

Otber information

The other information cormprises the information
included -r the arnual report, other ran the
inancial staterments and our auditor's report
thereon The directors are responsiple for the other

informaten contained witnin the annual report.

Char opingn an the hranciat statements doeas ~ot
cover the other nformat-on and, except to the

extent oiherwse explicitly stated in this report, we
ac not express any form of assurarice conclusion

thereon.

Qur resconsibility 15 1o read the otner informaion
and, in doing sc, consider whether tre otner
information is materially neonsiztent with the

fnancial staterrents or our knowledge obtaned in
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated |f we identify such mateal
mconsistencies or apparent material missiatemnents,
we are required to determire whetner this gwves rise
toy a rmaterial messtatement in the financial
staternants themselves. if, based on tre work woe
have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of the other informaton, we
are required 1o report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006

N our opinion, based on e work undorTaken in
tre course of the a.dit

« e nformation given in ine Stamg.c report and
tre Drectors’ report for the financial year for
which the financial stalerrenis are preparec is

consstent with the firancat statements, ard

» the Strategic repaort and Directors’ report have
bean prepared o acrordance witr applicaole
legal reguirements

Matiers on which we are required to
report by exception

In the Lghit of the know.edge and understarding of
the Group and the Parert Company anc its
environrmen: obta ned ir the course of tne audit,
we have rcetizonufed material rrussiatements in
tre Srategic report or D rectors’ report,

We have rotung to report in sespect of the
fallowing matters 10 relation to waich the
Cornparies Act 2006 recuires Ls (€ report 15 you |

i our SplTion

Q
3
-
T
~r
9
o
3
P
&13
Q
Ln)
+
3
n
O
=
O
=
=
a
Y
9]
=
5
<
D
3
9]
P
4]
M
b

(o8

'anches Aot visited

ﬁ
M
8]
(0
<
D
l
-
[0
=3
(o3

e certain disticiures of Directors’ rermunerationr

spechied oy law are nctmrade; or
W have not recen Il The informariorn and

plarahors we re

Q

£

Sale]
Qulre for aur audit,

Besponsibilities of directors

As exp\aimed more fuly In tre Directors

responsibl tes stateent sel out on pages 29 and
20 the Directore are responsible for the preparation

of the financial staterments ard for peing satshed
t-at they grve a true and fair view, anc for such
irternal control as tre Directors detlermine is

rnecessary 1o enabls i
staterrerts that are fres from matenal

misstaternent, wacther due 1o fraud or error

In prepacng the financial staierments, the Direciors
e

are responsioe for asse Croun's and the

Farent Company’s alblity 1o continae as a goirg
concern, disclosing, a5 appicable, maters related
o going COrcern ana Uaing the going concerm
basis of accounting urless the Directors either
ntand to hguidstz tne Group or the Parant
Compary or 1o c23se operations, or have no
realistic alternafive out to 30 50,

Aunditor's vesponsibilities for the audit
of the financial gsiatements

Cur ol ectives ars o obtam reascnable assurancs
abourwhrether the fnandia: statements 25 a whoie
are free from matenal misstaternens:, woether daeg
ta frauc or error, and to 55ue an auciior's report
t~at noiuses ool opinion. Reasonable assurance is
ahgh level of assurance, butisrot a guarante—e that
an audit corducte rice with 15As (L
atement when it

from fraud or error

o7}
o
()
jal}
[44]
)
8]
3
A
&)
]
o
%)
o
o
-

ez \f, indiv dually or in the

FCOUls reaonadly DE eXpeCiedto
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

[N

ﬁxpmﬁ“‘*?iﬁg“ as to what extent the + ottanng ar understanding of policies an
dit was considared capable of
xﬁmmtmg irregulavities, including

fraud

procegures ir place regardmg compliance
with faws and requlations, incl.d ng how
compliznce with such pot cies s morntered

Irreguiariies, Inciuding raug, sre instances of non- 21¢ enforces; obtairing an understanding o

compliances with laws and regulations. We design . ) )
respondng to fraud nsks, including programs

and conirols established to address risks

i

i

|

rManageTent's process for io‘emifymg and !
sroceddres e with odr respens biites, ocutlined
asove, to detect irreguiaraes, includng fraud. The i

. . . identifico, or otnerwsse prevent deter arid
rick of nor der.ectin:" a mareriagl mestaternent dag o identifics, or ot pre ‘

e b £ T e
fraus iz higher than the ris< of not detecting one detect fraud, and how senior managemer

Ao b - . o e
resulting from error, as frand may nvolve delberate rmonitcrs those programs and contros.

conceatment Ly, for examele, forgery or intentioral « review Of oard meerting mindtes in the oenad

misregresentations, or througs coilus'en. The ana up to cate of signmg
extent o wrich our proceaures are capable of

X . ‘ . « We aszessed the suscegtib:lity of the Group's
detecting irregalantes, ncluding fraud s detaiied

) - . finarcial statements 1o material msstatement,
nelew. Aowever, the primary responsio ity for the ) ‘
mcidding how fraud rmight occur By holding a

prevent:on and detection of fraud rests with both ‘
discussion witrin the audic team which included

those :harged wiin governance of the entity ara

managemert « denuhcation of related partes,

Our approach was as foidows + understand.ng the Group's business, the
coNnUch envircmment and assessing the inherent

« We cbrained an understarding of the l2gal and ‘ ‘ ‘
risk for relevart assertions at the agrificant

requlatory frameworks that are applicakble to the

account ievel ncluding disCussions with
Group and determined tnat the most sigrificant

mManagemnent (o gain an Junderstand.ng of

are thoze that relate (o rencmng frarrework (FRS )
tiose areas of the financial statements which
1302 ard tre Companies Act 2008) . ‘ ‘
were susceptible t¢ fraud, as icentifed by
« We undersicod now Farn Trading Limited is managemen:; and
compiying witn those ‘rameworks by making o ] .
o considered the controis tnat the Group has
enguires of management, those charged wth o ‘
estabished 1o address risks identified by
governance ard those responsible for legal

the ertty or that otherwise seek to prevent,
and complance procedures as to any fraud risk

deter ar detect fraud incuding gaining an

framewaork withirt the entity, Inciuding wheather ‘
dnderstanding of the entity level cortrois and

a formal fraud risk assessrrentis complaeted We N
nohces that the Grour applies

corchorated our enguines throagh review of the
foliowing documeniaton or performarce of the « Based on this ungerstand ng we desgred Gur
al.dit precedures toadentufy non-complance

with such .aws and regulations. Our procedures

following procedures

« obtaning an urderstandirg of entty-level ) ‘ ‘ ‘
- ) nvolved testing of journal entries rough
controls and cons gering the influence of the ) )
journat analytics tools, with focus on manJel
control envi-onment;

Thnan
rix SR,
Pt At ienin m;mm.wsu&

s
et menite i septer e el
Bireabiay tw:ﬁw«ui e

b s ﬂmwg§“§§:'“‘§ fohy

BHEEE vl b sl ST AT

Hiet i e 2+

G HEGEO ﬂﬁ’f* S

up :
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journals
meeting our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the business. tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financial
staternents; and inspecting correspondence,

if any, with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.arg.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report

it
PEa e e, -
R S S T IR T R

This report is made solely to the Comparny’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companics Act 2006, Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the company’'s members those matters we are

required to statc to them in an auditor's report and

for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s mermbers as a body, for cur
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

ﬁv’m@:&% f\LL.IQ

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP. Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2022
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Group profit and loss account for the year ended 30 June 2022

{restated)
2022 2021

e e e Mot ... F000 £000
Tumover%y S N — &im*m711,830 pEE
u.()‘t ’) 5205 {410,883) (221,277,
Gross pmht e e e e ek ot it e i 2 £t e 306,§47uww . 20&025
Adm PISUTEIVE expenises {258,251 231 944‘
Operatmg prof‘ltl{loss) & - o o -2 N 42:656 o (2?819)

Other wicorme 1 2,550 9454

income frem otner fixed assel investments 5,249 445
Share of cperating profi in joint veriture - 1755
Frofit on disposal of subsic ares ard oint venture & 29,533 28,568
Cither imterest recevable and simibar ncorme 5] 130 G697
inreres ot P JL le Anr‘ sire uaf charges & (33,554) (36.067
Frohtl(loss) before taxatlon e 4;6“0;M mm(ﬂ226w6§W
Fax on r‘rvft/(bsr i / (16,294) [8 549)
Profloss) forthefnanciatyesr T e o

Attributable to Fern 37,932 (27005}
Minority interest o (6 622) (4,007
31,310 {21,012

All results relate 10 cortinu g activities Note 26 details the prior pencd agjustmeonts.
Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2022

{restated)
2022 2021

£000 _E'000
31,310

,,,,,,,,,, e e

Profit/{loss] ortheﬁnancualyear o

Other comprehenswe income
Moverrants In casn flow hedges 77,985 44 Q83
Fc e excharge gdm/ sg; o ret T’dﬁﬂdtldﬂ OF meld\ es 18,561 G’ZJ)

Other ' comprehensive income for theyear 96,546 44 650

Total comprehensive income for the year - 127,856 15,638

Attributable to

+ Owners of the parent 134,478 17,645
4,007
127856 13638

s Non-controlling interests
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SGroup balance sheet as at 30 June 2022

{restated)

2022 2021
Note E'OBO . Eooo
F:x;d o ees e £ 4% A A b e rees e | e R i b e e
letarigi 5 8 557,708 576,739
Tanqible assets Ej 1,893,430 1581682
trvesiments 10 35 452 11000
Currentassets S
Stochks 12 184,479 94,711
Debtors {ncluding £138m (2027 £16 L} 13 623,161 588,002
due after more than one year,
Cas f. al 0anK & ‘d i r rmd 11 256 415 174 478
o . I 1 064055 865797
Credltors amounts fathng du;&iihm one year o 7 o a4 (256 152) - (202 OJQ}-
Net current assets S 867,§03 663 132
Total assets less current Ilabllltles - 3 294 493 ) ? 8"’39 6537 )
Crethtors amounts falling due after more than one year 15 - {9ﬂ92“425) o ‘ 903 339)
Prow oﬁs for lmblhtles S A (82 620) - (41 5/21
Net assets o - o - 2,219,448 1887842
Capital and reserves
Callee up share capita. 12 161,662 145,676
SMaEre prernium account 364,882 173,118
Merger resarve 1,635,569 1440257
Casr flow hedge resene 63,006 (14,979}
Frofit and (oss account 2,770 136,049
+;>§$|lsharehoiders funds ~ Z 222 349 1884121
F\f:r; cartro 1l hgeress T (2,901} 3721
Cap:tal employed 2,219,448 - 1,.887.842

Nmte 26 deta ls the prior pericd adjustments,

Trese consclidates Airaraigl siataments or pages 35 ¢ 92 were appreved by the Bosrd of directors on
15 Decemiper 2822 ard are s gned on their baralf by
PS Latham

Ciractor

Regizterec ramber 12601636
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fompany balance sheet as 83 30 Juns 2022
2022 2021
B o ) » Note E'000 ‘ EOOO
leed asset; e e 15 SRR AR RS £ R
Investmer;ts 10 2,539,978 2,116,366
D . 2539978 2016566
Current as'sets o
Cebiers 12 39,888 50,383
Cash ar bark and in hadc 11 6, 422 1 5?2
""" 46,310 51906
Credutors amounts fallmg due wuthm one year - ) 14 ) R (449) (7? 954)
Net cur;entmassets - - “45 861 28, 582
Total assets less currer;t_l_l-abllmes ) 2 585 839 \ wwww?145 348 )
Net assets 2,585,83;;m 2145 348
Capital and reserves
Caiied up share capial 18 161,662 142,676
Share prem. e account 364,882 173,118
Merger roserve 1,986,457 1,791,145
Hror tard 1255 account 72 838 3L 409
Total shareholders’ funds ) 2585839 2145348

The Company nac elected to taxe the exempiion under section 408 cf the Companies Act 20

profit for the financal pericd dealt with in
loss of £157504 050;

aresent the
taterments of the Com

Company orofit and loss account The
nany was E236,742 GO0 2021

I
>

OB notto
the financial

These financal statements on pages 35 to

and are signed on ther behalf by

PS Latham
Director

Reg:stered nurnber 12601636

82 were aporoved by the Boa

rd of directors on 16 Dacermber 2022
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Group statement of changes in equity for the vear ended 30 June 2082

Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controiling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest (restated) :
(rastated) (restated) funds §
{restated) !
y 000 £'000 :

RS BRI DR B R GRS

E'0G0 £000 £'060 £000 £000

b s e T SR B b0 00N GG A B e ot b

falarce 3
2070 (s <ta

138435 - 1635565 163,837) 143,185] 1668982 957G 1,678,552

Pricr ger o0 7t !
a”?n:‘mrm(ﬂ'is NG 2h) B B - S875 13828 17703 B e :

Halance asat 2 Juky

2070 ractat 138435 - 1535563 59,962) (27355]  LB86,685 9570 1626.255

- - - - 127,008] (27,005} (4,007 {31,012

- - - 44983 - 44,583 - 44,383

irconrefiexoerse) for - - - 44583 (323 44 650 - 44650

- - 14983 {27.338) 17645 4,007 13528

- - - L1831 1833 (L8342 (11}

- 1195312} - 195,312 - - -

ores ues dunr 11665 173,118 - - - 184303 - 134803

{444) - - - (6,399 5,843 - 5,843}

B8 Td

2@21 f'ésr;red? 1£5676 173118 1440,257 {14,979} 135,045 188421 2721 1.887.842

i
!
Balance as at %
1 July 2021 (restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 (14,979} 136,049 i884,121 3,721 1,887,842 i

Profit for the
financial year

- - - - 37,9352 37.932

(6.622) 31,310 3
Changesin market ;
value of cash flow - - - 77,985 - 77,985 - 77,985 H
hedges
Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561 i
of subsidiaries
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Called up Share Merger  Cashflow Profit TFotal Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds
. £'000 £'000 E'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Other -
I‘:;‘fﬂ':ﬁ::;:’:w, for - - 77,985 16,561 96,546 - 96,546
the year
Total comprehensive
income/lexpense) for - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 {6,622) 127,856
Lk year
Htilisation of merger - 195312 - (195312) - - -
f::;:i"“" during 191,764 - - - 203750 - 203750
:;l;::: ;so;tz 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 {2,770) 2,222,349 (2,901) 2,219,448
Note 26 details the prior penod agustments
Company statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2022
Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds
e £'000 £000 £'000 E’000 £'000
Bataﬂceat o ;p; ra;c;r:m S - T S e
Loss for the financial year o i - - ) o :15?5(]4\ o m(lg>7504)w
Utitisation of merger reserve - - (195,322 195312 -
Total comprehensive income - - s 37808 157504
Shares issued during the year 150120 173112 1,986 457 - 2,509,695
Shares cancelled during the year [444) - - 16,355} (6,843}
Balance as at 30 June 2021 " Tuse76 173118 1791245 31409 2145348
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 (195,312) -
Total comprehensive income T Tesmz avazs | 236741
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750
Shares cancelled during the year - - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161662 364,882 1986457 72,838 2585839
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Group statement of cash flows for the vear ended 30 June 2022

Maote

vie

Cash flows from operatlng actlwtaes '

LR 8+ g 7 R A

Prafit/iloss) for the financal year atinbutable 10 the owners o the parent

Adjustments for:

Tax on profit/ioss) 7

Intercet recenatle and sinriar ncome 6

Interest payabls and other similar cnarges 6

Proat on disposa. of subsidiares and oinn venture &

Ircarme from foent vaniure

Incorne fromr fxed assel mvestrmants

Amortisation and imparment of intarginle hred assets 3

Lepraciation of tangiole fxred asseis 3

MNon cash staf costs

Movements on derdivatives and foreagn oxchange

li"Creass rnstock

{Imcreasel/decieasse (1 debiors

Irerease/ldeciessel i ared lors

Non-controliing interes:s 19

[ay receny J”h el

Net cash generated from operatmg actnntles

Cash ﬂows from mvestlng activities :

Purchase of subsidiary unidertakings {net of Cash acy.red!

Sale of sunsidiary undartzicngs and ot venture

Hurcrnaze of tang'ble assots

Purchase of imtargibie aszes

Purchase &F unested mvestmerts

Sale of unlisted Imvestmerts 10

Irterest received 5

‘r'omp 'er om‘ vf r‘Urc

Net cash used in mvestmg actlv:tles -

Cash flows from financing achvuties o

Froceeds from gnancirg

irterest oad

Fepayments of I1ancing

Froceeds from share 1gs.e 8
8

Net (decrease)lmcrease in cash and cash equwalents

Cash ana casn eguivaenic at the cegnreg of tre yEEr il

ExChanga gains

Casn and cach equrvalenis

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of theryear 7 it

B g gy 4

37,932

16,294
{130)
33,554
(29,532)
(5,249}
45,762
101,802
3,040
(18,044)
{19,829}
31,022
(173,956)
(6,622}
25,853

41897

(52,377
101,778
(322,446)

{7.222)
(124,203)
105,000

130

(299 340)

203,719
(32,319}
(32,013

203,750

341 137

83, 694
172,478

256,415

restated)
2021

8,549
{997
38,068
(28.568)
{1,/55]
{449]
37704
84697
8.875
15,788}
(5,701
249,374
6,871
4,007}

w7

34191?

(221,987
34503
(110.457)
(875)
(25.617)
20,133
857

1 O??

(ZCb 2&5)

{35,552)
{212.676)
184,359

(e, 399)

(70.268)
(54 577

206,688

172478

Note 26 detals the oricr pericd adjusimer:s
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern Trading timited {'the Company 1 s a private company limsed by shares anc incorporated on 14 May
202C Tne cornzany s corriciled in Erglana, the United Kingdern and registered under company numbper
12601635 The address of the registeren office < at 6t Floor, 33 Helborn, Londar, Ergland, ECIN 25T,

Statement of compliance

The Croug and individual Francia, siatements of Fera Tradirg Limited have been prepared in corrprarce
witn Urited Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, "The Financ:al
Reporting S!andﬁrrl app:mah\p v the Linited Kingdorm and the Republic of reland (TR 10275 and the
Companries Act 2

Basis of preparvation of financizl statemeants

The financal staterments have ceen crepared on a going corcen basis, under the historical cost corvention
as modifed by the recogrition of certain financial assets and labdities measdred at fair value, and i
accordance vath tre Compan-es Act 2006 and applicable accounting standaras in the United Kingdom The
prncipa accountng polaes, whicn have been applied cons'stently througrout the year, are set out below,

rracing Limiteo
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The consolidated financial staternents include the results of av subs
as listed ir rotwe 29 of the annual finanaal statements. Certan cornpanies
liszed in note QJ have taken the exemotion frorm ar audit for the year ended 30 June 2022 permittad by

take t1e audit exermplionr, the

of these subsidiaries, which are

secuon 4794 of Ccmpanaes Act 2006, In order o aliow these subziciaries
parert company has given a statutory quarartee, n l'ne with tection 475C

06'

f Companies Act 2006, of ait
the cutstandirg net labilities as af. 30 June 2042

Golng concern

The Group's and the Compary's business acuvities, togethier with the factors likely to affect us fuure
developmeant, performance ard positon are set out the Strategic Report on pages 4 to 14, The financial
positon of tre Group, its cash flows, hquidity pesiten ard bo rfwmg facilitics are cescribed in tre Anancial
revicwy On pages 23 to 27 The principal rsks of tne Q poare set out on pages 16 1o 19

The Directors periorm an annua. go.ng concern review that considers the Grous's ability 1o meest 1S
financiai ooigatcrs as they fail due, for a perod of at least twelve rmonths after the date that the financial
statements have been cigned

Due 1o the chalenging marke: conditions maragerent have performed an asse ent to deermine

whether there are any material uncertantes ansing that could cast significant doubt on the aolity of the

Croup to continue as a gaing concern No signifcant issues have ceen noted and as a conseguence, the
e

directors be.eve thaf the Group is wel! placed to manage Its business risks successfully despite the current

uncertar econcmic outleok
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Iri reaching th:s conciusion the Directors Rave reviewed the dranciad impact of the urcertainty on tre
Group's batance sreet, proht and ioss ard cash flows with cific consigerat.on given to the fcllonwing

A reverse stress st was performed on the base case farecast 10 asceram what scananos would result +h
risks 1o the Groups licudity oostion The test showen even in an umkely scenario of a ugrn-ficart reduction

of revenue of 46%, the Group is able (o sustan its current operational Costs and rmeet ail habilines as they fal
due for at least a year from the date of 5197ng these 9nancial statemenis when utilising the avalable

faciiities w thin the Group

The Group nas 2 nurker of inarcing facilities trat contain covenants recJdinng the Group to maintam
speciFed fnancial ratos angd corrpiy with certain other financial covenants These firancial covenants ara
ested at least guarterly, and, at the date of this report, the Group s ir comphance with all its firancial
covenants Stress tests on reasorably plausible scenaros such as a significant reauction ir EBITOA of €
over ume have been used to assess the covenant requirements for the at igast the next twelve montns and
all coverarts have been forecast o be met even Jander the stress test scenano, 1n the going concern perio

fEZ256™ ard neadroorn availaole of £441m ncding a

s due to mature i less tnan one year, with the reramaer

)

of £956m payable m more than one y
[2ays

3, repaymert dates snd urdrawn arcourts ae
sot out in Note 15 Loans and Borowings.

Key acoounting judgerent and est'mates have been made witn cons deration giver (o the current

econormic outiook Key estmates nclude loan recoveraoility, valuanon of work :n progress,

decomimIssioning srov $ions, imparment of gooawill and investments, business comuinatiors and hedge
ac\,oumlfy Cetails are set out on pages 20 to 52

Based on the above assessment OF current cconomic conditors and the mipact or toe Group's financial
posuon, Igquidity acd financial covenants, the directors nave conciuded trat the Groun ana Corrpany has
adeguate resources © continue Im operat onal existernce for the next 12 menths. Thus, trey continue 10
Lstaterments

adopl the o ng concen basts of accountirg in preparng the annual franc

Exemptions for qualifying entitios undey FAS 102

FRS 102 allows a quabfying envly certair disc.osure exemprions, suDject to cartair condinons. which have
peen comrpied with, nclading notification
sharehclders

o and ~o obiection o, the use of exermptions oy the Cormpany's

3

The Compa

my has taken acvantage of the ‘oilowing exemotions.

from prepar ng a staterrent of cash flows, or the basis that s a aualfyng entity and tre corioldated
statement of 2ash fiows, ircluded i inese finargiel staterrerts, inciuded the Company's cash fiows:

i fromr the finan ristrument disclosures, requrad under FRS 182 paragraphs 11 33 t0 11484 and

ciat
aragrany '226 1012 29, a5 the informator s provded nothe consoidaes financ al siaterrart

(D

guired by FRS 102

i tne Corrpary key managament parsornet compensation, a3 1
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Statement of accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The corsotdaied financial staterments include the results of Fern Trading Lirnten anid all its subsidiary
underiakings made up to the same accounting date, Al intra-group bala~ces, ranzactions, ncome and
expenses ace eiiminated in full ar consolidaton The resuits of subsidiary undertakirgs acquired or dispased
of during the perog are inciuded or excluded rom the ncome statement from the efective date of
acgusiton or dispesal
All underakings over whnich the Group exercises contro!, be ng the power o govem tne financa and
coeraing policies 50 as to obtair penefits from the r acuvities, are C"I’“’Olld ted as =ubsdiary undertakings
Where g subs.diary nas different accounting policies to the Group, acjustmems ae made Ww th_vse
subsidary Anancial staterrents 'o apoly the Group's accounung policies wher greparing the ce-solidatad
firarcial staterments

v sabs-chary undertakings or ascocigies sold or acqured dunng thne year are includec ug to, or from, the

dates of change of contral or change of significant mfivence raspecuvely

PRl

[t}

Where the Groug has writien a pu colion over shares neld by a non-contrzling interest, e Group
derecogrizes tre ncm—r_omroliwng rterest and irstead recogrnised contingent def@rfﬂj consideration liatb:hty
w thin oiher payaotes far the estimated amount kely 1o be paid (o the non-cont-ciling interest on exercse
of those options. The residual amaount, representng the difference between any cor derat an paid/payahle
and the non-contreding interest’s share of net assets, s recognised as gooawlill Movenents in the
estimated liability after irtisl recogrition are recognised as goodwli

Forelgn currenay

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Group financial statements are presented in pound stering ana roundead to thousands

The Company’s functional and gresentzation currency 15 pound sterling and rounded to thousands,

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are trarslaed nto the ‘uncticnal currency using the spot exchange ratez at
the dates of tne trancactions At eacn period end foraign currency monetary iterrs are translated using the
closing rate, Non-mcrnetary iterrs rreasured at nistor cal cost are translated using the excharge rai at the
date of the transaction ard non-ronetary items measdred at fair vasue are measured using the exchange
rate when fair value was determined. Foreign excharge gans and lozses resulirg from thie settlement of
transacnons ard from the translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets ard Labilities
dencminated ir foreign currercies are recognised ir the profit ana loss account

All fore gn excranige gains and losses are presented inthe orodt and loss account within adrnirisrative
expenses’

iii. Translation

The trad rg resuits of Group undertakingsz are transiated imce sounds sterling at the averag hange rates
for ine year The assets and ligbilities of overseas undertakings, including goodwill and fdlr value aijJ ments
ansing on acquisition, are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the year-end Exchange adjustme

ar:sing frorr the rerransiation of open rg net investments ard from the tranzlation of the profits or losses
ar average rates are recoanised in 'Other compranensive income’ and allacated to non-contreling interest
as aporopriate.

;485
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Turnover

he Group operates a nurnber of classes of cusimess. Reveriue is denved by the foliownag,

Ernergy

Turncver from the sale of electricity generated by solar farms, wind generaling atsets, reserve powe
planis and Diomass and landfll sites 1s recognised on an accruals basis in the penoa in whicr its
generatec Revenue from !orc:—terrvw goverrment backed cfftake agreements, such as the Renewabie

("ROCY |

Chligaton Certification ("ROCY) scheme are accrued i1 the period nwnch e s to, Turnover from the

saie of "ertiliser by niomiass and andfll busi~esses is recogrnised on prysical dispatch

Turniover is recogr’sed when the sigrificant risxs and rewards 0f owrarship of retirement praperties have

passed 1o tne bu/-ﬁ* lon legal comp.eton), the srnount of revenue car be recogrisad relighbly, and itis
probable shat the economic cerefits associated with the transactior will flow to the entity Turnowver
15 recognized at ihe ‘air value of the consideration received for healthcare ser‘v'\‘ces provided  the normal
course of busingss, and & shown rea: of \/A‘— Turrover 12 recogr n the date the sewvice s

¢ Lending
Turaover represernts anargerent fees and nterest o loans prowded to customers, na s;wfany value
2dded tax Loan nierest s recogmsed cn ar accrual basis in ine witn contractual terms of the loan

ggreemert. Arrargement fees are

oread over thie life of the loar to which they retate

[

s Fipre
Turmover is recognised at Te far vaiue of the consideration received for internet conneclivity and relatzd
IT services provided i the normal course of business, ard is shown nel of VAT Turmover 15 recagnised

based on the date the service s proviced.

» House buirding
Turaover s recogrusad on 'egal completon of the 5

of property, lard and comrnerca: spaces Tumover
f-om Pousing association contracts iz recognized by reference ¢ the vaiuz of work complered as a
proporiion of tne total co-ract value

Emplovee benefits

The Group provides 3 - 'w;e of berefts 10 emp.oyess, rouding arnua, Borus aransgements, pad holiday
arrangements and def~ec contricuhon persicn plams

i. Short-term benefits
hort- term benefts mcluding houday «
o

(SN

Day
enze |» the parod in whon the service s reca ved

i. Defined contribution pension plan
defred contribul cn pia~ s a pensior plar urder wh'oh the Groun pays fxeo conrbut oms i

5
separate ertity. Once the conr Lutions have been pain e Group has 7o further paymrert obagatons
d h

ot

S

PP

M.gw
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iii. Share-based payments

Casn-seitled share-based payments are measured at fair velue at the balance sheet date The Group !
recognises & kabiity at tne balance sheet cate bases on these far values, taking nto accourt the estmiated :
Aumber Sf anits that will actualy v nrd the current proporuan of the vesting penod

Cnarges n tne value of this habiity are recogrsed in the income statement.

The Grous has no equity-settled arrangermeants

Finance costs

Finance costs are charged to the profit ard 0ss account ovear tne terrr of the debt usi-g the effecuve
nterest rmethod so that the amount crarged € gt a constant rate on the Carrying amount [ssue Costs are

sed as a reduct onin tne procesds of the associgied capital mstrament and released o the

N tally recogn:

orofnt ana loss accodnt over the term of the debt.

Currant and deforred tay

Tax is recogrsed im the statement o mcome and retained earmings, except that a change sttnbatalie t© an
tem of incore and experse recegnised as otner comarehersive ncome o to artem reccgnised directly

necuty s aiso recognized in other comprehensive Incorme or directly 'n eguty respectively

The currert income tax charge 1s catculat

£as W
suistart vely enacted by the batarce sheet date in the countries whgre thhe Company cperatas and
generates ncome

Defarred nalances

gre gmwc N respect of all timing differerces that nave origirated but not reversed i
by e Balance sheet dar ces that;
« The recogrition of deferred tax assets is limited to the extent that it s prokable that they will be recovered i

agairst ihe reversal of deferred tax liabiuties or other future taxable profts; and

o Ary deferres tax balances are reversed If and wnen all conaitions for retaining associated ax allowanrces
nave hean met

Deferrad tax balances are not recogrised 1n respect of permanent differences except in respect of business

a
comtinations, when deferred tax s recognised on the differences between the fair vaiues of assets acquired
and the future tax deductons avaiable for thermn and tre differences betweenr the fair values of labilities
acquired and the amounrt that will be aszessed for tax Deferred tax 1§ determined us.ng tax rales and Ews

that have been enacted or substant vely enacted by the balance sheet date
Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are gccountad for by applying the purchase meathod. :

The cost of 2 busimess comomaton is the far vaiue of the cons deration given, liabiuties incuired or
assumed and the equity instruments issued plus the costs directly atinbutacie (o the nusiness combination
Where control is achieved i stages tne cost s the conaideration at the date of eacn trarsacton,

O acadisition of a busimess, fair values are attributed to the identifiabe assets, habilities ard contngent

habilites uniess the fair valus cannot be mesasured reliatly, in which case the vaiue 15 ncorporated as
goodwill, Wrnere the fair value of contingent liabilities cannot be reliably measured they are disclosed

o the same basis as ofther cortingent labilites

Lt
ferd AN
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Goodw il recognized represents the excess of tre fair value and directly atnbutadle costs of the purchase
consideration over the fair values to the Group's interest .0 the identifiab'e ret assets, labilities ana
contingent lianilities acquired

On acguistior, goodwill 3 allocated to cash-generating units ('CGL'SS that are expected to benefit from
e combimation

Goodwllis amortised over s expectad u=efut iife which is determ ned based on the estrmated lifespan of
tre assets acquired. Where the Group is unable to make a reiabie estrmate of useful lfe, goodwitl is
amortised over a pericd not exceeding ten years, Goodwill is reviewed and assessed for mpairment
indicators on an annual basis and any impairment is charged to the proft and (oss

Tangible fived assels

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciztion. Depreciaton :3 prcvider* tes caiculated to write
2

‘D QJ

off the cost of fixed assets. less their estimated rasiduzl value cver their ‘Ut lives. Depreciation
commences from the date an asset is orought inio service Land and azsets in the course of consruction

are not depreciated The estimatec useful lves are as foliows

Lamd aﬂd J\'dzmr

.Jetvw‘k assets

Assets in the course of construchion are stated at cost. Tre

avaliahle for use

Where factors, such as technological advancerent o changes in market price, indcate that residual vaile
or useful life have crarged, the residual va.ue, useful life or depreciation rate are amended prosoectively to
reflect the new circumstarces, The assefs are reveewed for impairment if the anove factors ind.cate that the
carrying armaurt may be mgared

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds witn the carry'ng amount and are
recognised wiikin profit or ioss
intangible assels

IMtargib.e ascets are sat st less accumulataed amortization and accumuiated Impairment iesses
t

e o]
Amor-"saﬂor- is calculated, using the stra:ght-ine method, to allocate tre deprecianie amount of the assets

I
3
Q
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7
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cec i admiristrative expenses

evelopment nghts relate o planr Ng corse~t to bu ¢ a sclar farm and g wird “arm acgured o0 aCga SU0n.
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Whiere factors, such as changes 1 market price, indicate tha: residual vatue or useful ffe have changed, the
residua: value, usaetul ufe or amaortsation raie are amended prospectvely to refiect the rnew circumstances

The assets are reviewed for imparment iIf the above facters ndicate that the carrying amount may

De mpaired

Lenses
Al Imcepticn the Group aszesses agresrmeants that transfer the nignt to wse asses Tne assessment Consiaers
whether the arrangerment g, or contans, aease based on the substance o the arrangenrent and whethe

the 1eaze shoulg be classified az eitner 3 finance lease or an cperating lease.

'_
]
&)
vl
¢l
(%5}
C
(N
st}
1
%]
I

ts that tiarsfer SU‘“S".}’"'(IG“/ all the nisks and rewards incidental to ownershop are classified as
finance leases. finance leases are capialised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the
ated over the sharter of the ease term and the estimated useful bfe of tne asseat

m
wr
[¢F
=
-
Y
[
Q
o
—n 'o

or iMmpairraens at each reporting date

Leasas that do not transfer ail the sks and rewards of ownership are classified as operaung leasas
Payrnents ander operaung leases are charged to the proat and loss account on a siraight-ine zasis over the
perncd of the lezse

Investments

The Company nold: invesiments in a subsidiary at cost lezs accumulated imparrment «osses If an
rmpairmenrt loss - subsequently reversed, the carry.ng amount of the irvestment is increasec to the
estimaie of Its recoverabie amount, but oniy o the extent that the revisea carrying arcount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have Been determined had no imparment .0ss beer recogn

periods. A reversal of an imparrment ioss & recogrised I the profit and loss account

Lash

Casnincludes casn in ~and and deposits repayable on demand Restricted cash represents cash for whick
the Group does not have immediate and direct access or for which regulatory or legal reguirements restrict
the uze of the cash

Btocks

Raw matera.s, spar
CCessary, a provis
first-r1, frst-out (FIFC) rmeshod.

e parts and consumables are va uad at the lower of cost and net realisablg va.ue. Where
onis made for obsolete, slow-moving and defective stocx. Cost is determ ned on the

Fuel stocks (MBM and litter) are valued on an average crost basis ovar one o two months and provision for
unusab.e ttter 1s reviewed moninly and appled to off-sie stock.

Fuel stock of straw has bean valued at the histonical cost per tonne of straw. A prowson for unusabie straw
s identifed on an individual stack basis and 1s reviewed monthly Stocks are used an g first i, first cut
["FI=O% bas < by age of straw

=

Stocks of aesh at Ficropros are valued at the lower of cost ard net realisable value to the Groug.

Stocks of property dove.opment work i progress {WIP') are stated at the lower of cost anc net real'sable
value Cost compnses direct ratenals and, where applicable, direct lanour £osts and those overheads that
have been incurred i bringing the stocks o ther gresent locations ard comd\t\orﬂ
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AT each reporting date, an aiseszrmentis made for rmparment. Any excezs of ¢ arrying arrcurt of

swocks over its estimated seling price less costs to complete and sall ¢ recogrised &s an Imparment 1oss

through the profic and ss accourt. Reversals of impairment 0sses are also recogrised m tre proht ang

loss account.

Accrued Incoms

of Interes

E\)
&

Accrued i~come on loans s calculated at the rate “te Erergy income s

a
accrued over the period in whiczrn it has bee generated

Beferred income

Deferred income 15 recogrnised . accordance win the terms: set out in the contact, Deferred incomie is
eleased (o tho proft and loss account in the pencd 1o whick it 2lates

Financial instrumeanis

Tre Group nas chosen w adopt Sectorns 11 and 12 of FRS 102 ir respect o° inancal nstruments

Bazic financial assets, includ ng wrade and otrer recevan €5 and cas~ and tank sa.ances are initiaily

VECOF__]”I =} gt ransaction price. unless 17 arargemeant const ttes a LWSV\CIV'\(__} rransaction, where the

fransaction is rneasured at the present value of the future recemts d'scourted at 2 marke: rate of interest

sSuch assers are subsaquently carmed at amortised cost Lsing e efective interest retnod.

Al the end of each "eporting pericd financial asseis measured at arcortised w objectve
evidence of impa'rment. If a1 asset is mpairec the mparrent 102515 the dz 2 Carrying

armount and tre present va.ue of the ectimated cash flows discounted at the assels original effective nterest

rate. Tre impairment lo3s is recogn:sed in profs or loss

Otner fingncial assets, wouding investments in equivy instrurments whrich are ~ot subsiciaries,

Joint ventures, are indialy measurea at fair value, which s normaily e ransaction price 5UC7 azaets are

suosequenty carred at far vaue and tne changes in far value are recegrsed r profit or loss, excopt t
investrments 17 equity INstrurments that are not puclicly iraded and wross fair values cannot oe meas.red
re. 2oly are measurad at cost less mpainment

Fimancial assets are derecogrised when {a) the contractual nghts ©o the cash flows from the asser expire or

o
are settled, cor by substartiary al. the nisks and rewaras o° the ownerzh p of the asset are transerred to

another party or (c] control of the 5 er party wnc Fas the oractical ab lity

o Urilaterady sell the asset 1o an unreia g additiona. restricticns
Financial Habllities

2asic financial vanities, ircludng rade and other cayanies, oank ©ans, ans from fellow Groun companies

[a}}

and preference shates, ars ntialy recogised &t ramsacton orice, uless tne arrargsrnent conshitLies a
e

financng transacten, where the deot instrum

I

rtos meas.red at the gresent value of the “urure receizts

discounted at a mar<et rae o irterest
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Liebt nstruments are subseguently carried at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method. Fees
paid on the estaklshmert of «0an faciliies are recognised as tranzaction costs of the ioan t© he extent that
tiz probable that sorne or all of the faclity wll be drawn cown. in this case, the fee s ceferred until the
drave-down occurs To the extent there s no evidence that it is probable that some or all of e faciity wll
be drawn down, the fee is capitaiisea as a ore-payrment for uguidity services ara amortised over the period
of the facility 10 wh.ch it relates.

Trade payables are obugabons 1o pay for goods or senvces nat have been acqguired ntne orarrary colurse
of cusiness from sugphers Accounts payable are classified as current lizblties if paymert 1s dus within one
year or less. If not, they arc presenicd as non cur-ent bapillitios. Trace payables are recogrised initally at
transaction price and subseguently measured at amortised cost using tne effecuve inerest method.

Financ al liabitties are derecogn’sed when the uability is extinguishied, that 15 wrien tne contractual ebligation
is dizcharged, cancelled o7 expires,

Frovisions

Provisions are made where ar event has taken place tnat g'ves the Group a legal ar corstructive obligation
that probably requires settlerrent by a transfer of ecoromic benefis, and a redslbe estimate ¢an be made of
the amaunt of tre obligation

Provisiors are crarged as an expense to the proftand loss account in the year that the Group becomes
aware of the ganon ana are measurec at the best est.mate at the balance sheet date of the expenditurg
reguited o settle e ooligation, taking ‘nto accourt relevart risks and uncertainties

Medging

The Groue acplies bedge accounung for transactors enterad 1rto (o manage thie Cash flow exposures of
borrowings Interest rate swaps ae held to manage the interest rate exoosures anc are designated az cash
flow hedges of flcating rate borrowings Charges n the fair values of dervatives designated as cash fiow
redges, a~d which are effective are recogrised directiy in equity Any ineffectiveness in the nedging
relatonship (being the excess of the cumuiative change in far value of the hedging instrument since
inceptanr of the hedge over tre cumilative ¢range in the fair value of the hedged item since nception of
the nedge) 13 recognised in the grofit and loss

The cain or loss recognised in other comprehersive iIncome is reclassified to the profit ard loss in

cordance with the cash flows of the hecgey iten. Hedge accounting 15 disconticued when the nedging
INstrument expires, ro lorger meets the nedgng crtena the forecast transaction i no longer highly
protable, the nedaed debt imstrument 1s derecognised or the he-::g:ng nstrurnent 13 terrninated,

Share &:apimi

Crdinary shares issued by tne Group are recognised in equity at tne value of the proceeds received, with the
@xCcess over nomina. value being credited Lo snare premium,

Mon-controlling interests

Non-conrolung interests are measured at tner proportonate share of the accuiree’s identifiable net aszets
at the date ¢ acouistior

sl
,,,,,,
i ek
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Koy accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of finarcal staterrents n compliarce wih #RS 202 requires the use of certair criticai
accounting estirnates It alzo requires management 1o exercice udgenmentin arply fhie Cormpany’s
accourting po. c.es, Estimates and judgements are continuaily evaluaied and are ba d on histor.ca.
experrience and other factors, rouding expeciaticns ¢ future events that are beiieved to be reasonalle
under the circumsta~ces Tne key estimates and judgements in orepanng e nancia. statements are

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers {estimate)

Loans and advances 1o customers, NCiuding associated accrued income balances, are
impa-rment on a quarterly basis. In considering the need for a provisicr, mansgement determine their best
estimate of the

reviewed for

expecied future cash flows on a case by case Dasis. As this eztimate relies on a certair

number of assumptions about future events which mmay difer from actusl cutcomes, mciudmg the
borrower's ablity o repay Interest and capiial due ir future perods, th:s gives -se 1o judgement as o
whether there 15 a shortfall betweer the carrying vaiue and the fair va.ue of the debior balance

Management note thet provisions aga rst wans and advances s a critical estimate and rave the e
pericrmed senstiviy anaysis on the provison Tre results of the senstivity analys s conclude t%az a c'r.ange
of +/- one per cent ir to2 amount provided against the estimated talance at risk would have rezulted in

£ 3 6m less/more expenditure being charged o the income

statement curing fhe penca See riote 13 for the
carrying amount of the debtors and prowsicns at 30 June 202 ?

ii. Value of property development work in progress {'WIP'} {(estimate)

FProperty developrment WiF 15 reviewed for imparrrient on a peroaic basis In considenna the need for a
provision, maragernen: deermine therr oest estimate of tre recoverabile vaiue Maragement engage an
expert external valuer to provide key assumptions abous future everts wnich may differ from actual
outcormes, mcluding property vatuations, rate of sa.es ard develooment costs

These estimates give rise o judgement as o wnetner there is & srortfal. between the carrying value ana the
far value of the palance as 3t the 20 June 2022 Post year end. managemeni have reviewed the
assumphons used 1o deterrrine the vawe of property deve.opn"em WP and nave cbserved no changes in

e

performance that uld I pact the vatuation as st the 3G June 2022 See note 12 for the carrying amsount

of the property develocoment WP

. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement)
Tne Group owns two energy generatirg subsidiaries in Australia which have entered irtc purcrase price
agreaments (PPA'S) in 2019 ard 2021, Tne PPAs include a contract for aifferences "CF0D" whereoy the

suosidianas pay/rec

[D

ve amourss from the customer based on the diHE‘E"‘-CES betweenr a fixed seling price
and the actual price for elecincty soig to tne Austral an energy market “re direciors celieve tae contract 1s
cuts da tr
such arran

s
varniab.e consideration, ratner than revailu ng tne entire contract to “ar value

scope of FRS 102 sectior 12 as t1s ‘o the sae of a ron-Anancal item ard tre TfFD s typical for

lQ M
?
T
-]
o
ot
—1
!
4]
X
D
N
O
=
D
=3

peirg actourted for under FRS 102 secucn 23 as a reverue contract wits

iv. Business combinations {estimate}
The cost of a business compination s the farvaiue ¢f the considerat.cn give
e

A, abiities incurred olus the
of these combinatons is a key estimae

tinbutacle © the business comrb naton, rair valu

Q
Q
(%]
o
[l
o
=
D
0
iy

ty a
and maore deta ls are grovidea on pages 45 {C 46,
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Statement of accounting policies

v. Decommissioning provision {estimate)

The provision for decommissioning Costs 1s measdred 3t managemenrt's best estirnate of (re present value
of the expenditure required (¢ seftle the future cidiganon (o return land on which there are operatioral wind
ard soar farms, to its crigina. conditcn “he evel of the provisions is determired tc a aign.icant degree by
the estmation of fuwre dismantling and restoration costs, as well as the imng of disrrantlernent

Wind Farms {estimate):
PManagerrent note that decommissioning provis'ans s a critical estimate and have therefore performed
sensitivity analysis, The results of the sensity ty analysis co-clude that a char gc of +/- ore per cant in the

= 17 for the ot FOVI SO

dizcount rate woud nave resulted 1 L2 1rn increzse/decrease 10 the grovigior, S

<
ide ar eszir ated tto

recognised at 30 June 2022, Maragement utilise external experiise o prov
dismantle and have used 3 discount rate of 2% tc reflect the tme in vaiLe of meney and the nsks specific

to the ootigauor.

Australian solar farms {judgement):

The Grouo s requ:’red to resiore the weased prerisas of the solar farm © their ongina. condition at the end
of the lease term. A provisicn was previously recogmises, however in the currert year this judgerrent has
been reassessed and managermean: believe the lessor may wish to e tner take tille of the assets for enther
continued use or to readss value through sellirg the assets ard as sucn do not celieve that ar outfiow is
probable to settle this restoration obagaton

UK Solar (estimate):

During the year, 3 thire party performed an assessment of the base cost of the decommiss.ening of the
Croups UK sclar ‘arrng The findings bave resu.ed in material change in tre cost estimate and therefore a
prov son has been recogrisea for the first ime ¢n some sites, The impact has resulted in a provision being
raised for £1%m (o the batance sreet decormmissioning lability and fixed assets. As at 30 June 2022 there s
rio impact on the orofit and less Sites not affected are addresced below

UK and French Solar (judgment):

Maragement believe that g'ven the nature of these particular assets, trie lessor may wish to either take title
of the assets for exher cortinued use or to reabse value through selling the assets and as such do not
believe tnat an outflow 1s prabable to settle this restorat.er obligation. Management wll contrue 10 montor
tne situat on at each talarce shest date

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)
The value of goodw il neld by the Croup and investments in suksidiary drnderta<ings held by the Company
s reviewed arrually for impairment. “he recoverability of these ba.ances is corsidered with refererce o the
presen: value of the estimated future cash fiows. These calculations use cash flow proecticns whcn extend
forward forecast business performance o g tner with assumplions surrcunding fne expectec ife of the
asset extermally preparad forecasts and valuatiors, and any adjusiments required to the discount rate to take
account of business nisk The estrmated present value of these future cash flows 15 sensitive to the discount
ate and growth rate used in the calculation, all of which reguire management's Judgement. “esting of the
arrying value has been performed during the yeas, wnich Fas involved several scenarios terng modelled,
Basec on this testing ana the resulting rmparment recognised oninvestrmerts, managemeant beleves there
Is sufficient headroom W sdgpocrt the value of goodwill and investments ir sudsidiary entitigs

Managerrent note that irmpairment of gooadw lE and nvestments is @ crnitical estirnate and have therefore
performed sensitivity analysis ¢n the orovizion The results of the sensitivity analysis conclude that 2 change
of +/- cnie per cent in the amount provided agans: the estimated balance a7 risk wolld have resulted ir
£5.49m less/more expenditure being charged to the \nceme staterment during the penod. See note 8 for
the carrying armount of the goodwiil and nveztments at 30 June 2022,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
R N

Analysis of turnover by category

2022 2021

i dctmu;; AR AR 4 SRR B S S5 A et s s . o o404 5é552 ‘
Encrgy operauons - sclar, resarve powet and wing 365,958 179820
Friergy operaticns - biomass and landfid 223,526 141,826
[Heaitrcare ooeraticns” 45,978 42266
Heorne bulding 25,034 -
8,930 48328

711830 425307

Fibre operat.o

‘Inciuded it ngo

grd £28 & !

me Tom Healthcare cperatiors iz E174m (2022 L1212 reating to thc caic of retirement vilage unirs,
1 £31 Zem)in relaton to sorvices rendered

Analysis of turnover by gecgraphy

2022 2021
£000 £000

United Kingdorr: T _ 603,911 384,7’99
Curcpe 84,433 31893
23,486 8610

711,830 425,302

ahBRR g bR

Rest of world

Other income

2022 2021
V o £'000 £000

Liguidated damages and nsarance proceeds 3,550 3,454
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This 1s stated after crarging/creditng:

{restated)
2022 2021

£000 ECo0

A~ortizalion of intangible assets inote 8) 37.849 37,704
repairment of intangible assets (note 81 7,913 -
Deprecation of tanainle assets (note H) 101,802 84,667

Audiors remuneration - Compaty and tne Group's corsolidated

a5 146
financial stalermerts

Audirors rermuneration — audtt of Company's subsicianos 819 1,134
Avditors’ rermuneraticn — non-awcib serices 246 513
ALdRors remuneralion - ax COmplance senvices 482 672
Diffarence or {oreign exchange 7.772 4402

Qoerat rig lease rentals 13,783 7.502

Note 26 detals the prior period adjustments.

2022 2021

£000 ) .

::fagvzurvj salanes o 85,432 A41.3tﬁ3‘ h
Socia secunty costs 7,041 2809
3,233 LE7¢6
95706 46868

Cther per

Thne Group provides & defired confribution schemes for its ermnployees in the UK. The amount recognised as
an experse for tne defined contnbut.con scheme is shown in the wable above

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022 2021
qupgr ) Number

Producton 1,032 695
Adrninustranon 631 348

RTTTR Y : s

Jirectors 3 3
1,666 1,050

The Comgany had one employee cther than Directars during e poroa ended 30 June 2522 (2021 none]
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& Caovi g e by

g N 2y T DT . T

E'nolumen'f

i R B R 0 T BB R ERRR 1R B R TGRS S T e

2022
£" 000

2021
E OGD
163

Curing the year ne pens'on contributions weare mads 1N respect of the

The Group has no other key managemenit (2021 none)

RSN A oSe

A number of subsidianes of tne G
cmployees render servics
valuat.on of the uﬂ/“m{ymg subrsidia
recortng date and at the setilemer

3 n exchange fo

of exoense recognised takes inta account the best
vest urder the service and perforrruam:e condition

't date. Tae fair value s recognised over the v

ary. T'“-e fair valle of thie lablity for the awards made is
vesting perd The amount
avaitable estimate of the number of Lnits
s underslying

each award granted.

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

drectors 120621 none).

;roup operate a cash-sett.ed LTIP ta quaifying employees, whereby
cash, the amount of wnich is determined by reference 1o ine
measured at each

expectad to

2022 2021
Number of Numiber of
awards awards
‘ gout”?r’)dll’\gbﬂ]\f‘@ \on aRbnaand AR ST £ 508+ ot s ettt Lota 780 - 1640 OOOW
ur»mt(‘o Clrng fh a pcr‘f)u 274751
Closmg outstandlng balance w'g;678,31ﬂimu o 1 914 /b; 7
The total charge for the year was £3,133,000 (2021 £1 332 0G0) ang at the 30 June 2022 tnere was a
Latility of £2,407.000 nciuded with n crediters greater than ane year (2021 21 .334,000)
& oo
Interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021
o £'000 £000
Lrtrreft;nb;nl-f A o e e ke bbbk s s < s 1.30 o
Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021
£'000 £000
o 32192 24378
2,597 1,103
{1.235) 587
l 33,554 : 36068 :
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
;}’,)\
a) Analysis of charge in year

(restated)
2021

£000

g S R S 2 8 S S R I BRSBTS R b 8 R B R L BB B b L5 x 2 £ T T AN 4 T 4 e Tan LD

Current tax:

UK corpatation tax charge on profit/loss) for the year {297} 1,648
Agjustments inrespect GF prior perods 3,196 (2.866)
-\er gniax )uf[crcd 5,641 -
Deferred tax:

Ongination ard reversal of tirming differences 6,227

Agjustments in respect of prior pencds {3,741)

Fftect of change in tax rates 5263

Téx chargerornrpl;oﬁtl(lbss) oh 6rrdriil;|raryractivities - 16,294

b} Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year = h|5hf2r (2021 higher) than the standard rate of corporation ax 10 the UK of

19% (2021 19%) The differences are expiained becw:
(restated)
2022 2021
] T S £'000 3 £ OOO‘w
Profit/iloss) beforetax 0 47,604 eLo
Profitf{loss a tax reulip H;\J r*r* of
corg(irlatojnt;;zg: tld. UKJUTFWI'J‘C;: ’t.jC)SZCr 1;7) e 9045 (@.022)
Lfrects of
Fxpenses not deductible for tax purposes 11,723 16,076
Otner effects {868} 1022
income Not taxable for tax purposes (8,102) (351}
Adjustments in respect of prior penads {545) {6,865)
fffﬁfrs hf fr“cmge ir tax 'a'ﬂx 5,041 11,485
Totat tax charge for the year B 16,294- 8,345

c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted or 10 June 2021 ncreased the main rate of UK corporation tax from 19% w
25%. offective 1 April 2023, Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measured at 25% (2021 25%)
which recresants the future corporation tax rate that was enacted at the balarce sheet date

MNote 26 datans e prior penod adLsiments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

" s

Software Goodwill Development Total

{restated) rights

Group s EO00
NG - - . R TR A
At July 2071 restatedi 964 726,602 10,216 737,782
Acquired through business - 30,042 4,058 34,100
combinations (note 27)
Additons 2125 - 1,040 3165
Dispc - (21,118} - (21,118)
fmr on ira - /93r - 7.830
Al: 30 .'June 2022 T Mm3,08ﬂ9ﬂ 743 456 mmIS 31:1- o ﬂ75nlm8ﬂ59 .
Accumuuted amoms-auq-;.on «««««««««««««««««««««««««««««««««««««««««««««««««««««« e ..
At Juy 2071 [resiated] 07 159,902 1C34 161,043
Cisposais - (2462} - (2.462)
Loss on trarslanon (192} - {192)
lerpairrent - 7913 - 7913
Charge f for the year 17 57 314 523 37 845
At30June2022 " as 202475 1557 204151
Netbonkvalue T e e e o e et e
At 30 June 2022 2,970 540,981 13,757 557,708

The gain on trarsiauor of foreign currency cenorminated goodwill 1s recogrisad in aiher comprenensive
of

income. Amortisation of goedwil. is charged to agmirnsirat on Costs.

Detals of the subsidiaries acaured during the yvear ended 30 June 2022 can be found n note 27.

Durnng the year the grouo disposed of 2 wing farms in Finiand, as a resud £2.5r of accumiuated goodwill
arorisaon was recogn.sed i the current year and E G 3m of goodwil was reazsec on the sate Cainon
sale reccgnises i the proht and ices in relation to this transachicn was £28rm

mpairmer of £79m has been recognised on goodwill (2021 rone).

;

Mo assefs have Geen pledged as secunty for lianilities at year end (2027 narel.

The Company had no intangible assets at 30 Jure 2022 (2021 none;.

MNote 26 details the prior percd adjustrents
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

g W
Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total
buitdings stations machinery assets construction (restated}
{restated)
Group E'000 £000 £°000 £000 £°000
Cost
AL July 2wzl redaterd! 8521 217467 1695457 27288 AZ D277 2.092.00C

Aadi ong 829 1536 73,647 60462 238,006 374480

ACglirsg thro

7 DULINSSS 1708 _ 51,344 - B7E63 110315

nnahcns (note 27)

e

=Xdfair vaue rhoverrent - - 368 - 3294 3,662
Transfers - 68 1056 20,936 (32,0709 -
Diecotals 1135 - (75,851} - - {76,086)
At 30 June 2022 10533 31907t 1745911 118686 310170 2,504,371
Accumulated depreciation . S
A1 Juiy 2021 £410 90,059 414,559 1290 - 510,318
Charge for the year 183 17130 21,141 3,348 - 101802
[ispcsals - - {182) (221} - (403)
FAmovement - - {776]) - - (776}
At 30 June 2022 4,593 107,189 494,742 4,417 - 610941
Net boocon e e e e e e o T
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,682 1,251,169 114,269 310.17¢ 1,893,430
Ar‘EU June 2021 frestated; 4,121 227408 1,280,878 25998 43,277 o 1,581,68? 7

Included wthin tangible assets are caplalised finance costs directly atiributabh.e 1o bringing the asset into
use Tre net carrying amount of assets neld under arance leases included 'n plart, machirery, fixtures and
1785000 (2021 £51.534 000 ) Included in netwaork assets s a provsion of £1.023 000 for
obsolete equipment and development

fttings 1s £

The Company had no tangible assets at 30 June 2022 (2021 nonel

MNoie 2¢ details the pnor panod adiustments




A
&
|

4 § FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

1O

Uniisted
investments Total
Growp . | .. 000 £'000
E; stan d nét book value e n — e [ e A N .
1ty 2021 11000 11,000
Adcitions 129452 129452
Disp.osals {105,000 (105,000
At303June2022 35452 35452
At 30 Jure A;.f} - o 11.00GC ) 11,05&)““
Subsidiary
undertakings Totat

Company
Cost
At 30 June 2021

Additions

At 30 June 2022 e e s s e e+ o e e o e e e e e e e

Accumulated :mpaarments
AL3D June 2021

Reversat of impalrments

\mpanmpﬂfs

At 30 June 20:‘!2 S
Net book value

At 30 June 2022

AL S0 June 2021

'000 L £’000

2311678 2311678
228,300 228,300
2539978 2,539,978
195 312 195,312
(195,312) (195.312)
2539978 2539978
216,366 2115366

Detaiis of related undertakings are shown in note 29,

Linlistes investments comprise tne Group's noid ng of the members’ cag:t
c

a: of Te-'do LLP alending

business, ana 1ts srareholding in Bracker Trading Lirvted Fern co-founces Terido LLP in Cctober 2012 with

the interton of conductung a proparion of s f

Jtare race through tre parnership Addibons eng disposals

of unusted Investments reae 1o nvestrents and divestrments \n Terdo __2 1= lire wit~ Ferr's cash

recuirementa and
trhe oo e Fer
Tre drectors do not consider Terido LLP or Srac
Tracing _mite

W outibse surplus funds. Fern has a small sharenolaing 1 3racken Tracing Linited from
m's nvesiment it Bracken Tracing Limstea gt 30 Jane 2022 was SN 30 June 2021 £nil).
<& Trading Cirmitec to ke subs diary urdertakirgs of Farm
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ies cash in nand and deposits repayabie o0 demnand

Restricted casn represents cash for which the Group does not nave immed ate ard direct access or for
which requiatcry o legal requirerments restrict the use of the cash,

Group
2022 2021
o . . o L npmye NN ape o - oy e e E'OOO e EDOO
Ca_hﬁbdnkardlrmd: e e e g e e AR S S S 195823 ]1i1z11
¢ : 60 592 55 337
'Cash'at bank a'n'd 'i'n hand o l 256 415 S 172 478 -

Rectricred casn s comprised of £726,000 reld in Sscrow and 253,566 000 of cazh held in subsiaiaries with
[

si-annual distnoulor wingows

The Comgany nad a cast balance of £6,422,0C0 as at 30 June 2022, none of which was restricted {2022
Nore)

12 oo

Group
2022 2021
£000 £300
qu s S, P e
Fuel, spare pars and consurmanles 26,023 18,563
Propery doeveiopment Wik 156 918 73 923
) o S 184 479“_ - ‘3)4 711 -

The amounrt of stocks recognised as an expense during the year was £120,413 000 (2021 £41.212.000)

Included in the fuel, soare parts and consurmables stock value 13 a provision of £390.000 for unusable fue.
stock (2021 Eﬂ._Jﬂ,OG.,J Includmg N property development WIP 15 & prov sior of E928,000 for warranty ard
site spec fc provisions

There has beer no impairment recognised during the year on stock (2021 none). No nventory nas been

pledgec as securty for labilties (20210 nore}

The Compeary Pag 1o stocks at 30 June 2022 (2021 none).

.
e 13*,@%&

L sl

¢
SENL ey



15
[
1

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
5 . OB

Group Company
{restated)
2022 2021 2022
£000 €000 £000

Amounts falling due after one year
Loans and sovances 1o cusomers 137,662 16,128 -

Amounts falling due within one year

icans and advinces to customers 223,239 369 384 -
Trade gebtors 42,050 16,121 392

Arncunts owaed by related parties incte 24) - 3,850 32,950
Other gettors 20,199 24972 3,843
Corporaicn tax - 6,603 2,527
Denvative financial nstrumenis irote 21 54,409 6,469 -
Frepayments and accrued inceme 145,602 154,375 176
"""""""" " e23a6L 92002 39888

l.oans and advances 1o customers are stated ~el of provisions of £13,874 G600 (2021: £18,195.000
g *‘w)
3 ,

> 9
Frepayments anc accrued income are siatec nel of pravisions of £7733,000 {2021 £13.741,000

]

No interast s charged on amaounts owed oy group andertaings, &s tne cutstanding ba.arces are unsecred

and repayalt.e on demand (2022, nonel.

Noe 26 details tne prior period adjustments
P B )
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T R T S

Oitner taxat on and social secur ty
Ltner crediters
Amourts due o related parhes (notle 24)
Financ.e eases inole 16;

Dervatve Arancal instrurrents inote 21)

Accrias and doforred income

RN APART BT ARG AR ABY AR GRS ¢ L BERLNA

LY L

Group

2022
£000

BRGS0 Y b RN & 9Tttt $4 0%

87,732
58,004

8,161
24,362

2,428

256 152

75 465

{restated)
2021

23,350

55806
3147
143

72 087

2”2 059

[OOG
4,7 586

Company

2022
_£'c00

2021
£000

76

373
449

S o wane

16
20,203

2,705
22 924

is .. ) . - i
Group
2022 2021
Amounts falling due betwee E'OOO o £000
Ewm%{o;q: wd!ﬂ rd?a {: ~ e S S v 383,6V7W0M «2;;297
Firarwe leases (noe 16) 5,899 6,125
Derivative financial nstruments inote 21} - -
Cther creaitors 5,364 5 415
I ) 394,333 258837
Group
2022 2021
Amounts falling due after mote th than fwe years o VE'WOOO £000
EZ?W lcans ard overdrafts mz‘jt; 161 NMS;;A!.S 577235
Finance eases (noe 16 24,676 244595
Cerivative franciat in3 ents | > 215 - 42, ?72
e e T i i e i . r;;sm,bsmz e 1644 502
Total creditors falling due after mare than one year 992,425 503,339
The Compary has no credizors due in greater than one year,

AMmodnts

MNote 26 dez

Iis the pricr cerod adustments,

owed o reated part s are unsecured, non-interest bearing and recayable on demand
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

6 oo o oue oL Ty

2022

bbb b S b b o b E B KB & B RS KBk s & oo T E R IRON TR TR ARG R AR DS Sk 5 b bt mend 53

Due between ore and five years 383,070

Due mn maore thar five years

1,044,218

£oo0 |
87,732

573,416

2021
. £000
247,297

577235

871918

Tre Company had ro hark [oans at 30 June 2022

supsidia

D

The banx ioans are secured agaims: assets of the Group with each lGan as held Gy th

Interest rate 2022

Viners ene

Cedar Fnergy and Infrastructure Lirmited LIBCR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% -

3 month EURIBOR plus
1.20%, Fixed rate 1.70%

Elcs Energy 3 12% + 6 month LURIBOR 56,079
Boomerarg Ereargy Lo ted & month SONIA plus 1.50% 284.348

649% (swap rate of 4.55% +
19% margin}

Lles bnergy 2 30,946

Darbingion Pant Solar Farm Pty Linited 114,026

Melton Renewabtle Energy UK Tirited 6 month SONIA plus 2.35% 85,718

Dulacca WF Holdeo P 1Y Lt 17% + BBSY 31,614
Lo, 2 EY, -

Elivia liormes mied 5%+ SUNIA + 2 5% non 12,306

utilisation fee
Zestec Asset Managamaont Lirstes Fixed rate 2 5% 43
1,044,218

& month SONIA plus 160% 429,138

ry shown below:

2021

295,344

103439

871518

SONIA replaced L ROR as the effecive imterbark lendimg rate system from 1 January 2022 The rate change

reswlted n no commmercs al impact 1o the busness

Finance leases

Thne future mrumum f rance wease Laymens are as fellows.,

2022

nernts dug

Notater than one year 2,428
Later tha one year and ot later than five years 5,899
Later than five years 76,461
Tata, gross payments 84,788
Less Anarcs 3 {51,785)
Carrying amount of the liability ' 33,003

gooo .

3165
6,195
72.013
81,375
147.609)
33766

e
re~tal, renewal or purchase option clauses. "ents cayable increase by
secired agamnst the leased sszets

Tne Company had no fnance leases at 30 June 2022

sguipmert There are no contirgert

local irflgtion Finance leases are
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Decommissioning (restated) (restated)
provision Deferred tax Total
Group SOt AUt SUUSO 000
At Mu{)’IPMA 20435 20933 41,272
incresse recogrised in profitand oss 21 11495 11,516
increase recogaised trough othor cornprenensve income - 18,202 18,202
Irfisirmenit S 18 S 16
increase recogrised in fixed assofs 23,656 - 23,656
Recognised on sLosidiary acgusitons - (3.568) (3.568}
Agjusiment in respect of prior years - (5465 (5,465}
Urwancing of disconnt 249 - 249
Adjustment relat ng 10 change n accounung estimae (3,373 - (3,373}
i 15 - 15
41,023 41,597 82,620

The decomirissioning provisicn 1s held 1o cover future obligatiens to return lanc on which there are
ticnal wing, oiomass and solar farms, to the r original condition. The armoants are not expected o be
utliced “or in excess of 25 years,

The Comipany had ne provisons at 30 June 2022

MNote 26 detalls the prior pernod adiustrments

1 SR TR T SN STUE SO SR IR VAN

The Groue anc Comgpany have tne foldowing share capital

Group 2022 2021
Ailotted calted up”and fuuy pald - I-'.'OOOWM 000
H 616 £22 Dll tcOdl 1496,755,258]

TR PR ’ 161,662 148,676
Crainary snares of EO 10 each 61, ‘
Company 2022 2041
Allotted, called-up and fully paid £'000 o E OOO
1616622 011 (2021 1,496 /55,258]

Ordinary shares of £ 10 cack 161,662 149,676
During the year the Group issued 119,865,754 (2021 1,501,199.275 ) ordinary shares of L0310 each for an

aggregate nominal vaiue of £11,887.000 (2021 £1501 'ZJ 000 Of the shares issusd durng the year, tctal
consideration of £203,750,000 (2021 £2,316.695.000) was paid for the shares, giving rise to a premium of
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£191.763,000 {2021 £172118,000). During the year the uroup purchased ri (2021

orcinary shares oF £0.

Tne Group nes aaopted predecessor accourntirg prnc’ples as it wacs formed as part ¢f a grous

1 ;
10 each with an aggregate nomiral value of £l {2021 £444.050]. Totsl consicaration
of Eral (2021 26.844,000) was pad for the snares, giving rise to a prernium of 2t {2021 £6,353.003)

recorsiructhon, trerefere the share cap-tat and share prerm Lm account are tregted as if tnoy had always

ex cted Moverents n share capial arising ooth befors ang afler the restructure are reportes as movernents

in the Group share capital

Gurn g the year the Comparty ssued 119866 754 (2021 L 501,199,278) crdinary shares of [0 10 each for an
r'

Mo
e

egate rominal value of £11,987,000 (20

a
152,120.050) Of tre srares iszued dunng the year, tot

al

consideration of £203,750,000 (2022 £2 316695 0005 was pa d for the shares, giving nse 1o a premiam of
e r

£191,764 . 0C0 [(2021: £2,166.575 0001 During the year t~e Group curchased nil (2021 4444,020) of

e

rjmarjf shares of & ch with an aggregare nomnal value of £l (20210 £444 C00). Total corsideration
of Zni (2021 £6,844.0 was pad for the shares, givieg nse to a gremium of Eml (20271 £6,393,000)

recayrent of capital

Cash flow hedge reserve
Thne cash flow heage reserve is used to record trarsactions arising from the Gro

hedgirg arrargements.

Merger reserve

Tre merger reserve arizes from the aifference between the farr vaius of the shae
valeez of the subsidaries acqured

The moverrent n nen controlling nterests was a3 follows
g

Group

MNote 2022
£'000

e TR S R b

21 3,721

At T July

Sale of subsidiary urdertakings and acaudisition
OF ron-contoiing inerest

Total comrpreliensyve 19ss attirbutadle WO

e {6,622)
Non-Contre

(2 901)

s own

rere s g wingle cass of ordirary shares There are no restricuons ar e cistribution of dwidends and the

sues and ne pook

2021
£000

B

8.570

(1.842)

(4,007}

3721

N L
e et hielh
Faten ety
s

s
Ngg;;.yg’ﬁw,s::

7.
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As at 30 June 2027 thare were No Cortin@encies across

> Group or Company

s znd lab:lit.es

Carryirg a

Group Company

{restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
Group £'000 £000 £'000 E'000

N RN B R E AR TR #hh bk wme xpamr et uh pie MAE WA EORSEay R hE s vy ITHERA T 0 PART AR SRNTRNNVERH L DAN PR Hxerh hvorvnn T RGO MDY I A BET Y SEVARS PO ARY TE PMROmERT

Carrying amount of financial assets

Dabt instrurments measdres at amoer: sed Cost 423,150 430,556 4,235 17767

Measared at far value thraugh profit and oss - 6465 - -
Mﬁa “'rcd w‘tu throm h L compre hems. € INCOMe 54,409 - - -

Carrying amount of financiat llabllltaes
Measured at amortised cost 1,126,163 556,384 76 16

Me asure 2d at fair value through of r.o* comprehensve INcom: - 42772 - -

e 20 details the pror pericd ad usrments
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Derivative financial instruments
The Groug's fnancial risk management seeks 1o ' mise the exposure to rnarket ris<. credit risk, ligudity
and cash flow risk, and ene gy market risk

a) Market risk
Energy market rigk
heen erg/ secloris expenencing significant turbulence and there 1s a risk that forecast levels of income are
changes in wnalesale enesgy proes, off-taxe cortracts or government subsidies
Changes in Goverrment p

O

licy, or regulator nterventdan may result in reduced income streams within the
groun due to aadit-onat levies

Currency risk

The Group presents its consolidated financial statements in sterling and corducts business in a number of

other currenc:es, principally Zuro anc Australizn deliar Conseguentty, the Group is exposea to foreign

excha~ge rnsk due to exchange rate rmovements, which affect the Graup's transactioral expenses and the
nsiation of earning and net asseis of its norn-sterling operations

Transactional exposures

Transactiora exposures arise from adminsstrative and other expense i currancies ather than the Group s
presentational currency (Sterling). The Gf up erters in o forward forgign excnange contracts and foraign
excharge swaps to mitigate the excniange raie risk “o certain foreign currency payables end receints The
forward currency contracis snd swaps are measured af fair value, which s determined us ng vaiuation
techrigues that Ltilise observab‘:e rputs The key inpdts used ir valuing the derivativas are the forward
excharge rates for GBP AJD and G3P.FJR O 30 June 2027 the fair vaue of the foremn CUrrErncy
contracts was an asset of £nil (2 Z‘L £6.469C00) and 2 uabilty of Eml (2021 £1£3.0

Translational exposures
Balance sheet ranzlational exposares arse or consg

tion on tre retrarslation of the baiance sheet of
non-siering cperations irto steriing, el of exposure s reviewad

e level of risk and

(D-(
&
9

the
by management and the potential foraign exc;han;:e movemert is within an acc

therefore, typicaily, the Group's poticy to not to aclively nedge these expotures

Interest rate risk

=

The Groun has exposure to fluctaations in i est rates on is Borrowings. Where the Group enters inte

borrowing arrangerments with floatrg rate interest, a swao arrangemen: s entered into 1o fix a gortion of

the interest in order 10 Mitgate against an increase |

rn.nterest rates The porcon of interest 1o be fixed 15
assessed On a Case by case nesis. Maragement can elect whether o hedge account for these
ar e

ngemenss on an ndrigual ransaction basis and have elect

Tne swaps are bazed

d to apply redge accounung for nterest
raid swaps oroa prnc pal amount of the loar facilty and mature on the same dafe.
On 30 Jure 2022 the outsianoing irnierest rate swaos have a matuniy in excess of ive years and the farr

& f

vaiLe 1IN an asset pcosition of £54,405.0C00 2027 sty ©

Price ris

c =

0I5 & smert- W mediam-tern lender 1o the resdent al property marxet, To the extent (atirere g
deterioration in the level of house grices that a*fects tre gropert'es that tne Croup's loans are secured
agalrst, there s a risk that tre Group may not recoun its ful exposure Tois is rmitigated by the shor-term
nature of the loans ana the consarvative eve, of loan 10 value that the Group s preparec i end at
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b) Credit risk
Custormer gradit r sk s ritigated througn the Group's credit contrel policies, whien are in place 1o ensure

that our customers nave an appregnate credic history and are ronitcred on an ongo ng bass.

¢} Liquidity risk

Liguidity nisk are managed by ensunng inat sufficient cash is avaitable o fund cortinuirig and “ulure operatons,
Ligudity risk arses on pank wans ir place acress the Group and 1s maraged througn careful monitwaricrg of
covenants and sensitie levels of delt. BEor-ow'ng is on g iong-term basis, whiereas our revenue s recawved
throughout the year, as weld as interest and redaernohicns on oJdr short-term wcan book Castiflow rs<is
rnaraged through ongoing cash flow forecasting to ensure recaipts are sufficient to meet bk ltes as they
fall cue
At the year enc the Group had capial commitrrenis as foilows

2022 2021
Group '000 E'OOO
(‘onlrd(_tﬂc fur but not orC\word in thess nﬂamr‘er SIATOMents 347 254 0,156
Undravers taciit @35 or 10ans to horrowers 173,600 92682

Az 20 June the Group had toral future min mum lease payrments ander norn-cancellable operating leases

2022 2021
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings buldings
£000 £000 £00 £:000

e ket o AR s S it g TV TR BT ESE (TR S L RS AR R § S boatasmamens o dbe §ones

Payrmenis dug:

O AR SRS KR R R 1

Mot zter than one year 8,707 661 8,031 749

Later than cne year and rnof later than five 31,627 726 30,369 1688

years

Later than five years 95, 664 - 118 932 g
135,998 1,387 157,332 2444

Tre Groug had no other off-galance sheet arrangaments (2021, nonel.

Linder zections 3944 ana 479A of the Companies Ac: 2006, the paren: company Fern Trading Limited has
guaranieed all ourstanding liabiiities on those companies taking the exemption to which the sugsidiaries list
on pages 79 10 90 were subject to at the 30 June 2022 untit they are satsfied In full. These lablues totat
£915m. Such guarantees are enforceanle agairst Fern T
liability is due.

racding Limited oy any person o whorm any such

The Compary had ro capital or other commiiments at 30 June 2022.
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On 11 July 2022, Fern Trading Development Limited UFTDLU), a subsidiary of the Group, succ
Darirgton 2ot Holdeo Pty Lirnted 1o Octopus Austraiia Master Trust. A srnall prefit of 850,000 was made

o e sale.

O the 1st of Decernber 2022, the Group accuirad rights to 2 £25m credtvoucrer and the rignt to use

mob:le ucenses from Trree UK viz a Strategic Conrectivity Agreemient, Thus ma<'ng the first stec towarcs

ecemirg an mebile virtual network operator.

e

Under FRS 102 33.1A disclosures necd not be given of transactions entered nio between two or more
membears of a Group, provided that any sups:idiary which is a party to the trarsact on s whaolly owred ¢
such a mem

Curing the vear, fees of £7/7934 500 (2021 £61,154.000) were charged w6 the Groun Ly Octopus
Investrnents Limited, a relates party doeg o s signihcant infleence over the entity Octopus Irvestments
Limited was recharged o d professional fees totaling 210,155 (2020, £16,000] by tre Groug. AT the

l and
year end, an amount of £ SDO (2025 £21%,000) was outstand ~g which s incluced in trade craditors,

“re Grouap is erttled 10 3 profit share as @ result of s irvestment n Terdo L_P, 3 reiated party due to key
maragoment cersonnel i common. In 2022 a share of proft egual to £5,243 500 (2021 £44%,0001 nas

been recognised by tre Group. Al the year end, tre Croup has an inter I the member's caotal of
=N b
£35,.452 000 (2027 £12.000.2001 and aecrued income due of £5 276 QGG (2025 £4/3.000]

The Group engages in lending activities wiich include balances providesd to related parties Regard ng
entities wm «by rranagemeant personnel N commor, loans of £63 490,000 {2027 £173,224.0005, &
income of £19,786,000 (2022, £26 203,020 ard defer*ed mcorf*@ of £ 12021 £101,C00) were
erestincome of £7160,000 2021 £17581.000) ard fees of £
on o these (car
Durng tne vear the Group acquired 9 reserve power comoanies from comsznies managed oy Ootopus

W

investments Lmited. a related party See note 27 a) for getals of the co~paries acguired

Az at 30 June 2022 Tl (2021 £3,950,275) was owed to the Comuoany by Brac«en Tradirg Limitad, a re.ated
party by key managemen: personnel in common

Other than the Trarsactions disctosed aoove, tnie Comoany's other retated party tranzactions were wrth s
wholy ownec subsidary mermbers of t-e Group
g T T AU A R

I the opirion of the direciors, ther

(]

< ultmate cortreling party or parent comgary
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26 o

a) Group structuring review

We have conductad a review of prior years' accaunting treatment of intercompany resoructisormng e this

revieyw management idenufied unamaortsed goodwill balances in relanon to these transactions We have

adjusted the previous years (o reflect the implementation of amortisat on backdated to when the relevant

transact-ons occurad Tne accurnuiated impact for the goodwii amaortization in the profit and loss for 2022

weas L8 (20200 £5 3m) the movement of £2 7m bas been restated througnout the 2021 comparative

Aurcbers A summany of inge imoact of the correction s provided Gelow

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated} (restated)
Grqup ’ E'OOD 3 B Mf.'ooo“ £000
Goodvall 58Z.988 {5,.335) 578,653
Retaned ez mirgs 41185 5335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
Group £°000 £'000 ~ £E'000
Goodwel 602,711 (8,049) 554,662
Reta neo earnings 8,049 {115,871)

(125,920)

As part of the review of the intergroup restructunng mentiored above, management Wdentified ore of the

restructures hiad Geer incorrectly accounted “or in a stb sectien of the group No furtner errors were
discoversed i the revew Tre accumalated impact for goodwill amortisation in the profit and .oss for 2021
was £2 5m (2020, £1.3my, the movement of £1.2m has beer restateq throughout the 2021 comparative
rumbers Ths mpact o the 2520 opening retaired earminas was offset by £2.1m writien back against bad

aebt expenses. Managemer: have correctad the wWdertified error with the following impact:

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020

{as stated) {restated)

Group i it Fnerie e £ 000 £000 £000

Goodyal S " sgz 088 (29,185) 554,805

Retgined earnings 41,185 899 42,084

Dientors 842,549 (2.724) 839.825

Crediors. amaounts falling due within one year (232.813) 456 (232,317)

Fixed assets 1,346,655 30512 1,377.167

Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

(as stated) {restated)

Group . Fe0o .. .. .Fo00 ...E000
GQQZ\M( ........................................................................................... 6627 fl S — (2;963) R ,,gm;rgm

Retained earmnings (123.920) (324 (124,241}

Debtors 600.726 {(2.724) 558002

Creditors arnounts faling dus wilhin one year (207,318} 496 (206,822)

Fixed assets 1,551,170 30,512 1,581,682
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b} Deferred tax adjustment
We have conducied a review of al consclidaucn entries at supsections o the groun We have icentifed an

arror relating to 2019 when ceferred tax adjustmerts were entered as a consclidation entry and had

subseqguently not been reversad We have checked e tax per subsigiary account ans have ensured that the

relevant balarces are correct Tne error was nostes

Rotained eamings

Creditors amounts fail ng duc within ane year
¥

Tiris has a knoc< effect into Ju

Resained earmings

Creditcrs amourits fal ng due witnin one year

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated} (restated)
£000 £'000 £'000

41,185 {4.764) 36471
(232.813) 4,764 (228,049

ae 2021, the restated balances are as fol.ows

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
20 June 2021 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
£'000

~_E'000

(123,920}
{207,518}

ey e AR, & 2

(E000

(4,764}
4,764

at a conzoldated level only and has now been correchad

D 2t C CERNITRE P EVERE PO

(128,634)
1202.554)

In preparing the wax compotations for 2022, the Group's tax adv so7¢ have not.ced an overlooked

2ISUMEHON I previcus years tax consolidaton calculations, Within tre previcusly unrecegnized defered tax

assets held with in the groun some were avasable on a consolicated leve, e offset the Group's deferrea tax

liab-uty

part of these deferrec asscts are in relation t© cash flow hedges

for with n other comprehersive income The sccurulated impact for the

Onan navioual compary bais the deferred tax in previo
8]

ax charge «w tre profit and loss

5 years hac peen correlty reCogrised. A

L
ala within the group which are accourtad

for 2021 was E15rm (2020 £15.37) the movevert of 200k has been resiated throughout the 2021

comparative rnumbers.

A zumimrary of the impact of the correction s provided elow”

Group

Retained earrings
Cash flow hedge reserve

Deferred tax provisions

Year ended Adjustment
30 June 2020
(as stated)

£000 €000

41,185 {15.299)

63837 [2.875)
(36,484}

Year ended

30 June 2020
(restated)

£'000

25,886
59,962
{17.310)
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Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 202% adjustments 30June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
( £000 . £°000
Cash fiow nadge reserve {72,119} 14,979
Delarred 1ax provinions A 17.212 (20,333}
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated)
Group S £000 £000 ~_E'000
L{C‘tmmcwmg& e e e st 4118 (5 w[lggg&g) 2;55,6
Gooriwi 583,988 {34.517) 549471
Debiorns 842,549 (2,724) 839,825
Fixed assets 1.34£.655 30,512 1377167
Diafered tax prov.sions {36.484) 19,174 (27,310)
Cash flows Pedge reserve 63837 (3875 59,962
Creditors araounts fading dae within one year (232,813) 5259 {227,554}
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated}
Group o L £'000 ~ E'000 £000
Goocwill 602.711 (36,011 566,700
Debiors 600,726 (2.724) 598,002
Fixed assets 1,551,170 30.512 1581682
Deferrad tax provisions 138,145} 17.212 (20,933)
Cash flow nedge rescrve 17,098 {2,119) 14,975
Crodimors arnounts falirg due waikin one year (207.318) 5255 (202,059)
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a) Reserve Power acquisition
Or 2 July 2027, the Group acaurred 9 reserve power s'tes through the purchase of 100% of the share capitsl

for consideration of L1

The foiowing tabiss surimarise the consideration paid oy the Group, tne far vaue of the assets acau red,

and e ligo-lties assumed at the acquisition date

£000

Cask -

Total cansideration - ‘
|
|

Details of the farr value of the net assets 2cgaired and goodwtl arsmg are as folows i

Book value Adjustments Fair value :
i
£000 EOOO £000

waed ssets 80,788 (2 553 52.235

Trade and othor recevasles 294 - 294

Prepayrmens 635 - 635

Cash anc cash eguivalents 7858 - 7858
Trade and other creaitors {2,206) - (2.200)
(58 316) - (58.8148) :
23 5537 ‘ (ZiB,Sitr':'l"a)r o

Total consuderatlon -

Loodw ll resulting from the busiress combinasticr was ri., ;

b
[

The conscidaten statement oF comprehensve roomes for the year ncluoes £45.803 200 reveniue and a

proft afrer tax of £686, 000 1 respect of this acquis tior. :
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b) Doveryard Limited acquisition
On 22 Cctober 2021, the Group arauiren Doveryard Limited ara its subsidiary through the purchace of
100% of the share capital for considerat on of £13,414,000.

The following tables summarise e consideration paig by the Groue, the far value of assels acquired, ant

Jabilities assurned at the acgusition date

Consideration £000
C dj 12,377
Fzref tly attricutable costs l 037

Total conmderatl;“r; T ) i i 13 414

Detalls of she fair vaiue of the net assets accsurad ang cooowall anising are as

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

R £000  E£000 £000

Trarle ard othor receivabies 52 52
Srepayrrents ard accrued income 193 - 192
1ios (467) - (467)

Gaom 13,067
Total cons:deratuon 13,414

'raJp arm Q hrsr ¢

Goodwill resditing rom the ousiness combnation was £13.067 000 and has an estimated useful e of 25

years, reflacung the Ufespan o the assets acquired.

%]

The consolidated staterment of comprehensive incorne for the year includes Enil of revenue and 3 (0SS

hefore tax of £123.000 in respect of tis acguisinon
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¢) Dulacca acquisition

lE 20722

On 27 August 2021, tre Group acguired Dulacca WF Holdece PTY L arf‘ its three supsichanes through the
3 q

purchase of 100% of the share capital for censicderation of £115,680.00

The following tables zummarise the co
[

assume at te acqudisition date A st of the entites acquired included 17 note 29,

nsideraticr paid by the Groun, tre far value of the assets acguired,

N ) AUD'000  Exchange Rate £'000
S e R e o 115,085»‘
1126 18904 585
Total coﬁs:deratlon . 2!.8 683 o o 115,680
Detalls of the fair value of the net assets acnuired and intang’ble anzing are as follows
Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair
values value values value
llllll - AUD’OOO AUD'000 AUD 000 £ 000 £000
Tied assets s T T Mozess s T ee037
Trade ard other recevablas 13131 - 10,131 5,35/ - 5,357
Cash and casn 2quivalents 103,072 - 103,072 54,525 - 54,525
AT and deferred incom flO Q52) - (lO 954‘ f‘i 793, - (J /95)
Net assets acquired 209884 - 209884 111,026 - 111,026
: ta”glblg .......... e 8799WW s e ioss .
Total consuderatlon R R 218 683' 115 680

Irtarables re
reflecting the lifespar of the assets acquired.

2sulting from the assel purcnase was £4,654.000 ard nas an estimated u

ssefol ife of 30 years,

The consoloateg statermnent of comprehens ve income for the year incwdes £n'l of reverue and a loss a'ter

o}
tax of £237.000 in respect of this acquisition
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d} Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition

_
olar, through the purchase of 100%

The foilowing tables surmmarise tre condsideration paig by the G

dabilties assumec at the acguis.tion date

Consideration

Cash

Uefoerred consacrat on
Crrectly artributaclz cos1s

Total consideration

Group. the fair value of gzsets

G S AR AR BT DY bk BEER 48 Hh0E bR baiak  ama e sandEra Kua v < anain 4 At

On 31 January 2027, the Grouao acquired Zestec Asset Mangernerit Limited a project sources for rooftop
% of the share captal for consideraton of £4,765,000.

acquired, ard

£'060

Wtaee  AMRRISTX T uPRRNENT T M ERERAT GG RY Py R e

3672

1083
4 755

Detaiis of the falr va ue ©f the et assats acquired and goodwill arismg are as follows.

Book Adjustments Fair

vatues value

- e EOOD N )(“-:'000 £000

Ex;} dcsét, oS B R B R R R NS RS B e BERER 15% ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e S e

Trade ard orher credirors (574) - (574)

Trade and cther recavables 400 400

Cash ard cash eguivalents 1.019 - 1,019

\J{hQ" @aﬂ% (48] - t46)
Net assets acqunred - - ST 9m55 . 9557”

Total consideration

4 765

Zeodwill resulting from the bus ness cambinatic

years, reflecting the estmated lfespan of the assefs acquired

The consoldated statement of ¢

before tax of £494,000 1n respect of this acgusition

was £2,810,000 ard has an estimated use‘ul life of 10

merehensive income for the year includes £198,000 of reverue and a los
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

e) Elivia Homes acquisition

D 23 May 2022, the Groug acgured Elwia —oidings L mited ang its sunsdiaries, throvab the purchass o
100% of the share capital for consideration of £31.634,000.

,,,,,,, ey ara | eRE AL LS BER RS CuS R R rs e n s h a3 W D AR B b AL v ann TR AT SRR w3 s 6 2 TSR Al s Al nas -

Cazh 20,999

Oirect

Fattributa

Total consideration

Details of the fair value of the ret assets acqurec and goodwiil arising are as 'ollows

Book Adjustments Fair

values value
£000 £000  E000 |
mem e s e« 1 e v i 418 e - 41§ !
irtangile assets 11,767 - 11,767 i

Stock £9,939 - 69,939
Trade and othicr debiors 25059 - 2509

Cashana cash equralents 11,603 - 11603
Accraals and deferred Incorne (420} - 1420) :
Provisions (930) - (9201
Deferred tax 6.000 {1,400} 4600
(69.453) - 163453}
Netassets acquired 3:.533 7 (1400) o 301.’:3 ;
Goodvil T T e
Total consideration 7 7 31,684 !
Goodw!l resiitirg rom tre business cormzimaton was £1,551 C00 and has an esumated useful life of 10 5
years, reflecting the lifespan of the assets acguired,
Tr2 conscl dates staternent of comprehensive iIncome for the year inc udes revenue of £25 034,000 and a ;
proft pefore tax of £1.502,000 1~ respect ¢f s acquizit on ‘
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
ZE oo nLs DN R T e e e

Our reported results are nregared 1in accordance with United Hongdom Accounting Standards, incluaing
Financiat Reporting Standarg 1072, as detailed in the Fina~cial Statements starting on page 35 of the Annual
Report. Ir rneasuring our perfaormarce, the financial measzures that we use include thoze that have been
derved from cur reported resulis ir order 1o eliminate factors that distort year-on-year COmpansens. Trasa
gre considered non GAAP financial measures

Net debt

We prowvids net debt in addinign to cash and gross celit 58 a way of assessing our overall case posit oy and &t

15 cornputed as foliows.

2022 2021
Note £000 £00C

e nnrr e wewe rnage nas e w Ry e L. IEEN NN

...... e ReBabh % b ke VS N

werdrafis 1% 1.044.218 87191

¢l
o
3
fal
&
o
&
B
)
0
&)

Otrer loars

Gfossrde'bt 7

871,918

(172,478)

11 (256,415)

793,167 699,440
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

EBITDA !
Farnings pefore interest. tax, deprecianon ang amaortsation ("EBIT DAY 15 calculated by asjusting proft after
tax for interest tax, deprecation and araortisaton, i additon 1o ncome ang exper ses that do rot relate t© ;

tne day o day cperaticrs of the Group We prowvide E8.TOA in addition to profit afer tax as 17 alidws us 1o ]f
assess our performance without the effects of inancing and capiat exgendiures !

The following tanle details the agustrments made to the reported resunts

{restated)
2022 2021

Note £000 £000 .

Pr::ﬁtl(losws ) forthe hnancmlyear o peare ¢ SR e P 7 RS G ' TR TR e o TS & 31510 (31012]
Adc
Arnorisanon of Intangible assets ¢ 37.849 37,704 '
Irnpairrment O ntang ble assers 8 7913 -
Depreciatior of tang nple aszess 2 101802 84,697 i
Irperest pavable and sirnilar cxpenses = 33554 36,067 !

Excephonal items 1108 - i
Tax 7 16,294 8,349

Less

Ircorme frorm Other fxed asset nvestments (5,249} 1449) i
Shiare of operatng oroftin jont vernture - {1.755)

Broat o dhisposa!l of subsidiares {25,532} {28,568)
{130) (997)
EBITDA 194,916 104,036 :

Ll

Irterest receivable arnd surilar noorme

Note 26 detalls fre pnor penod adustnents :

i
]
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
F4- NG

Detaiis of the subsidiary undertakngs ae as folows

Country of Class of Principal
e e . i COrporation  shares . Holding activiy
;:tv)botk Hipton Salar Crwnemrg/mHoxrj ng le\tFF‘ UK Ord.nar,/ 100% Haolding company
Adainda So.ar SPY L Limted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Agrisol-z SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Al Networks Lirmired™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Allpo rits F-bre Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Egj;?;}ork
Aurhencarrocn Erergy Limited®” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Aaguririe Land Company Linmited=?" LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Averne Solar Farre Lrated” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Banbury Fower _mitad™ LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Batsoiare 5 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Batsolare 7 SARL France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Beetey Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Beighton Energy Limized’ UK Crdinary 100% Dormant compary
Beinneur: W nd Farrn Ltd” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Belihouse Snergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Birch Estate Sotar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Blaby Sclar Farm Lirntted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
BNRG IOW Lirnsted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bolam Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Boomerang Energy Lirmited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Boreas Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100G% Holding company
Gratton Fleming Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
Greck Soiar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
F:vnﬂt;;”)dm Solar Developments Hoicings UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Bryn Yr Cdyn Soler Developments Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bury Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cadoxton Reserve Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cacias Energy Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Holding company

Cark Limm ted” Ireland Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

AR ARAI s IO ROBNRS R S L g o 240 PO SRS HAEA AR ke e e o

Caswell Sotar Farm | mmieu
Cashlon Energy Limited?

Causilgey Limites

Cedar Energy and Infrastructurs Lirnited

)]
rm
o
Fr
jvs)

Berceronns SARLY

CEPE Hautdu Ssyie’
CEEE de la Rocne Quatre Rivierss SARLY
CEPE du paye de St Seine 3ARL

Chelson Meadow Erergy Lirr ted”

Crisbor Soar Farm Haldings Limited™

Cratterirg Solar Twe Lmited”
Cilgwyn Saergy Lirnited”

Clann Farm Limtea”
Clararrond So.ar SPY 1 Lirited™

Cie Developmrents Limited’

CLP Envicogas Limed™

CiPE =rgjects 2 Lirrized
CLPE ROC - 1 Limeted
CL=s ROC - 2 Limr e

shenne de Producuon d Erergie de
3 7

£ iCentrale Eclienna de
Froduction @ Ensrgie ae Lacombe) SARLY

Country of
incorporation

Ui
UK

France

France

France

France

France
Frarice
France
France
France
UK
UK
LUK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Class of
shares

bt chas s s

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Qrdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Principal

Holdmg act:\nty

o b

100%
100%
100%
160%
1G0%

100%

100%

100%
160%
100%
100%
1007%
100%

100%
100%

BB H R b s

Energy geﬂeration
Energy generation
Energy generation

olding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generat-on
Energy gereration

Energy generation
Energy generation
Ernergy generation
Erergy generation
Holding cormpany
Enargy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Ernergy generation
Dormant company

Provision of O&M
services

Dormant company
Cormant company
Holding company
Holdimg company
Holding company
Holding company
clding company
Energy generation
Energy genearation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

M i e e OTROTAtON | Shares Holding activity e S
CLPE ROC - ZA Limitenrd” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CLPE ROC - 4 Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CLPT ROC — 44 Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Clyne Power Limizsd” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Colsterworth Energy Limmited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
Connon Brdge —rigrgy Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cotesbacn Energy Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cour Wind Farm (Scotandl L rmitegt™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Crapnel Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Crayfern Homes (Scuth Coast) Limtedt UK Ordinary 100% Ef:;f;gi?éc?ti
Crayfern Limited”? UK Ordinary  100%  Sonstuction of

domestic buildings
Crayfern Surley (Shinfoldl miegt UK Ordinary 100% Sj\l{;fgp?;?etciz
Crayrnarsh Lirreted” UK Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
Cressing Solar Farm Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Culvery Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cyrnon Power Lirited” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Dafer Reserve Power Limited’™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dairy House Sowr Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Deepdate Farm Solar Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Doveryard Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Crapers Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dulacza Energy Project Co PTY Ltd®? Australia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dulacca Energy Project FinCo PTY Ltd'? Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
Dulacca Energy Project Holdeo Co FTY Ltdg™? Australia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dulacca WF Holaco PTY Lig!? Australia Ordinary 100% Hotlding company
Dyffryn Brodyr Lirited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generahon
Eakring Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elecse| Carmargue SARL® France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Elecsol France 7 SARL? France Ordinary S50% Energy generation
Elecsol France 11 SARLS France Ordinary S0% Energy generation
Elecsal Frarce 15 SARL France Ordinary 106% Erergy generation

Elecsol Frarce 15 SARL® France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

P e e

Elezsol France 2

2z
Elecso. France 24 SARL*

Elecso: France 41 SARL®

Elecso. kaut var SARL?

Elios Erergy Z France SAS?

Elioz Energy 2 Limited

Elios Energy 3 France SAS7

Elios Energy Howdings 2 uimten™
Elos Energy Holdings 3 Limited”
Elios Energy Holdings Limiied™”

Elios Renewalile Energy Limited””

Elivia Develecornent F riance Limited®
flva Hold rgs Limited

Eliv-a Homes (Centrall Limited™t

Eivea homes (Dormant 21 Limered ™
Elivia Homes (Grange Road)y Limited
Elvia Homes (Netieyl Limited®:

Eia Homes (Southern) Limited™?

i
J\i]

nz Homes (Surpiton) Lirmpeg

T

Elvia horik Lirre teg®!

r

Elvia Oxfora Lirzedtt

Sodtn mitec!t

m
<
[\

Principat
activity

Country of Class of
incorporation  shares Holding
France Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
France Ordimary 100%
France Crdinary 1G0%
France Ordinary 100%
France Crdinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
France Ordinary 160%
UK Ordinary 160%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
Crdinary
UK Deferred 100%
Preference

UK Ordinary 100%
LK Ordmary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
LK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%

Erergy generaticr)rr{
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding cormpany
Holding company
Holding compary
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Construction of

dornestic bulldings

Financial services
nolding companies

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic buitdings
Development of
bulding projects
Construction of
domestic buildings
Construction of
domestic butdings
Development of
tuilding projects
Development of
puilding projects
Construction of
domestic bulldings
Buying and selling of
own real estate

Construction of
domestic buildings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Elvia Southern Lirn ted*-

Eilicombe Linrsted”

Eriergy Power Resoarces Limited”

EPR Ey Limited™

EPR Eye Limited”

EPR Glanford timited™

EPR Rerewable Enargy Limited™
EPR Scotland Limited®”

EPR Tretford Limiteg™

Ecalyntus Energy Holdirgs Lirmitec™
Eucalyotus Energy Limited”

Feltwel, Energy Limited™

Fern Energy Cour Holdings Limized™
Fern Energy Holdings Linited”

Fern Energy Limited™

Fern Energy Wind Hold:ings Limited”™
Fern Fibre Limited™

Fern Healthcare Holdirgs Limited”
Fern Infrastructare Limited™

Fern Renewable Energy Limited™
Fern Rooftop Solar (A} Limited”

Fern Rooftop Solar (BED)™

Farn Rooftop Solar (Zested) Limited™
Fern Trading Developmant Limited”

Fern Trading Group Limited

Fern UK Power Developments Limited”

Fibrophos Limsted”
Four Burrows Limited"™”

Fraistnoroe W nd Farm Lirteg™

Country of

Class of

incorporation shares

i s

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
LK

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Orcinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
UK

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Principal

Holding activity

100%

100%

100%

=
o O
[ ]
XS

100%

&

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%

Construction of

demestic buildings
Buymng and selling of
own raal estate

Erergy generation

Energy project
developrment and
management
SErvices

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Supply of fertiliser
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

N i e e e T tion shares  Holding activity i
Garlaff Erergy Limited® UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Giganet Fibre _td” UK Ordinary 100% ;irt;rgur::e;t;vnork
Giganst Limired™ UK Ordinary 100% ;igsuzeti{;frk
Glenchamoer Wnd Energy Lirruted UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Grange Wind Farmn Limitea™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy gereration
Guardbride SP z.0.0° Poland Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Harbourne Power Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hayrnaker (Mount My Lid™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Haymaker {(Mztewood) Hdoidings Limited™ LK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Hayrmaker (Matewoaod) _id™ UK Crdinary 160% Energy generation
Haymaker {Oakiands) Holdings Linted” UK Ordinary 160% Halding company
Haymaker (Oakiands) Lid” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Helm Power 2 Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding comparny
Helm Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Higher Xnapp Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hil Ernd Farm amited” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Hottarmoor _mited” LUK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Hull Reserve Power Limized” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Hursit SPv 1 Lmited” UK Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
Immingham Fower Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
frywel Power Limted™ UK Crdinary 160% Energy generation
Jamesgn Rkead Energy Limited™” LK Crdinary 160% Energy generation
Jurassic Fiore Aoldings Limited™ UK Crdinary Q0% Helding company
Jurassic Fiore _imited UK Ordinary Q0% Egg&?gfrk
Kiln 2ower Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Larigan Power Lim.ted” UK Crdinary 100% Energy genreration

enhar Sclar bmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Little 7 Solar Limited™ K Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Littleror Solar Farmr Lo ted”™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Ll Communications Lid”™ UK Crdinary 100% Fiore network

production

Ledoon Power Zmited™ UK Crdinary 10G% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name
Lovedean Limited”
Luminance Soiar Lirnited™
M1Z Sowncns Limited™
Mznston "horne Limuted™
March Energy Limited™
Marden Powear Limited™
Marley Traich Solar Limited™
Meadows Farm Limited”™
Meibourn Solar Limited™
tMetton LG Eneargy Limited™

Melton LG Holding Limited™

Metton LG ROC Limeted™

(R}

Melton Renewable Energy (Holdings) Lirmstad”™
Melton Renewalbie Znergy Newco Limied”
Melten Renewable —nergy JK Limited

Mili Hill Farr Sotar Limated®

Mingay Farm Holding Lirnited™

MSP Decoy L1d™

MSP Strete ttd”

MSP Tregassow Limited™

MT?S Hatchlands Solar Lid™

Nevern Power Limited™

New Row Farm Limited™

Newiands Solar Limited™

Nnrig Farm Limsted™

North: Perratz Frut Farm Limited™
Northwich Power Limited”

Motos Srergy Limited™

Dgmore Power Limied™”

Qldhali Energy Recovery Holdings Limited™

One Ashiord Healthcare Limited

One Hatfield Hospital Limited

R R RN N OSPUUNPRPRII SO DS FE RS AN SE R S SR FESPE N

Country of Class of
incorporation shares ...
Ui( Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
LUK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary

Holding activity

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
10C%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Principal

Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding campany

Asset leasing
company

Holding compary
Holding company
Halding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gencration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company

Provision of
healthcare services

Proviston of
healthcare services

AR RS YRS AT
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Name

B RS Y e b EERE SR e e oL SRR S S 6 % e ke o

Cne Hea\thcaré;artners Lirmted

Orta Wedgehill Solar Holdings Cirmited”™
Orta Wedgehull Solar Limited™

Falfreys Barton L'mited™

FParciau Howdirgs L mited™

Parclad Lirnited
FPark Broadband Lim sed™

FPearmat Sowar 2 Ltd”

Pitchford (Condaover A rheic & Stooebateh)

Lirmiteg”

Pitts Farr Umited™
Porihos Solar Limited”
Pyms Lane Salar Ltd™

Gueens Park Road Energy Limitad™

Rangeford Care Liruteg™
Rangeford Chertsey Limited™”
Range‘ord Cirencester Limites™

Rangeford Doring Lirmited™
Rargeford Haoidings Lirnted”

Rangeford Pic<erng Limited”™

Rangeford RAP Limited”
Rangeford Retrrerent Living Holdngs Lid™

Fargeford Staolefnrd Limted™
Reaches Farm Lirjted”
Redlake FPower Limited"
Ryson tstate Lim ed™

o CCA T A

Sarmrmat SARL

sewny Power Lmiteg™

SFP Fibre Lmites®

Country of Class of Principal

incorporatja_p shares Holding . yaf::t‘iyity‘

UK Ordinary 85% Holding comparny

Uic Ordinary 100% Holding company

LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Helding company

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn

UK Crdinary  100% | Jore network
production

IR Ordinary 100% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

UK rdinary 100% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Holding comparny

UK Ordinary 1060% Erergy generation

Uk Ordinary 100% Energy generation
C vIC

UK Ordinary ~ 100% ~ CoCservcesfora
retirement village

LK Ordinary 100% Retirement village
development

. -~ o Retirement village

UK Ordinary 100% development

UK Ordinary 100% Retirement village
development

UK Orchiinary 100% Holding company

Uk Ordinary 100% Retirement village
development

UK Ordinary 100% Retirement village
development

UK Crdinary 100% Helding company

UK Ordinary 100% Retirement village
development

UK Crdinary 160% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

France Ordinary 100% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 1002 Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Fibre network

production
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name e i nin oo MCOrporation shares Holding activity o
Singrug Hotdings V‘;_!m\ted” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Singrdg Limited™ LK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Sz Hills Lare (Ragdaie) Liried” LK Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
Skelorooke Energy L ted™ UK Ordinary 00 Erergy generation
Slasghtergate Limtad™ Uk Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Sretterton Renewalble Power Fuels Cimited” UK Ordinary 1G0% Sj&gpw of biemass
Sretterton Rerewanle Power Hoidirgs Limitea™ UK Crdinary 1800% Holding company
Inetteston Rerewable Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Soiarf LPOB SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy gensaration
Solart SPO1 SARL France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfr SPOZ SARLY France Ordinary 10G% Energy generation
Solarfi SPO4 SARL? France Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
Solarh SPOS SARLY France Crdinary 1G60% Energy generation
Sclarfi PGS SARLS France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi SP10 SARY France Crdmary 100% Energy generation
Southcormbe Farm Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
St Asaph Power Lirmited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Parkhouse Solar Limited™ LK Ordinary 160% Energy genearation
Steadfact Rudge Solar Ltg™ Uk Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sieadfast Saiptan Belinger Solar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stetlar Power Limited™ LUK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stoneyhill Energy Lim-ted® UK Crdinary 100% Darmant company
SUis Erergy Limited”™” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
summerston Energy Lirmteg®” LK Ordinary 106% Energy generation
Sunley Crayfern Lavant LLP'™ K NA 50% MA
Swish Fibre Contracting Lirmtad® UK Ordinary 100% ;ir%rguletitgvnork
Swish Fibre Limiteg® UK Ordirary 80% Holding company
Swish Fibre Networks Lid® UK Ordinary  100% ELZ’;E{;?*
Swish Fibre Services Limited® UK Ordinary 80% gggﬁ&ork
Swish Fibre Yorkshire® K Ordinary 100% Fibre network

production

Swizh Trading Limized™ UK Ordinary 80% Holding company
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“he Fern Power Comoany Limited”
Tne Hellies Solar Farrn Limited™
Thigresoy Estate (Budoy) Limited™
Tillingham Power Lirated™

Todhilis Energy Limited ™

Tredown Farm Lirmited™
Turves Sclar Limitec™
UKSE 15 Selgr Limiteg”

Lrited Mings Energy _imiied”™

VIISE Ltg”

Vicioria Solar Limited™
Viners Energy Lim ted
Vit Lirrited”
Viohafrance 01 SARL?
Veltafrance 02 SARL®
Voltafrance 13 SARL®
Voltafrance SARL®
Yiorboss Limited”

Vorboss US 1ac?

Wadswecxk Green Limited”

\ ~ -
Wadswick Green rropert

el

3]

Warnraior Power Limited™

Water oo Sciar Park moldings Limmited™
Water.oo Sciar Park Lirted”

Weer Farm 2 Limited”

Wesiwood Power Limiteg™

VAP [P (PN
Westwood towr Cmiited

I o~ H T
servces Dimted

Country of Class of
~ incorporation shares
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Crdinary
LK Crdinary
R Ordinary
UK Crdmnary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Qrginary
france Crdinary
France Ordinary
France Crdinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LISA Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary

e IR D

Holding
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
1035%
100%
100%

160%
160%
160%
10:07%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Principal
agtivity

Energy generaton
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generat:on
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre netwaork
producton

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Holding company

Filbre network
production

Retirernent village
oparator

Service charge
administrator

Energy generation
Holding company
Energy gensration
Energy gereration
Energy generation

Energy generation

P

et
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
NG e s e incorporation shares =~ Holding activity = .
;-/‘\-fesherden ergy Lm ‘t:d UK Ordinary 100% Energy g@mergtlon
Wharf Power _imited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
whiddon Farm Lirried™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy gerieration
Whinroy Hill £nergy Lirited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wincele Solar Feldings Linmied™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Wolverhampton Fower L1d™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wryde Crofs Wing Farrn omited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
WSE Braoford Lirmited™ LK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
WSE Hulavingto Haolaings Limited ™ 1JK Ordinary 100% Holding company
WEE Hutlavington vimitec™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
WEE Fark Wall Limitex™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
WEE Pyde Drove Limited™ UK Ordinary 160% Erergy generation
Zestec Asset Managernent Limited™ UK Grdinary 100% Erergy generation
Acquired after year end Date
Fern Rooftep Solar (880) Lirted 09/08/2022
Cuckog interret Lid 31/08/202z2
Y infi Digral Limitec 13/07/2022
40f Limnited 2271172022

Subsidianies exerapt frorm audit by virtue of 54804 of the Companies Azt 2006,
“Subsdianes exempt from audit by virtue of $4734A of the Companies Act 2006
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dlssolved or soid durmg the year and up untll Sigl‘llng o . bate
B_‘ o - rmmnchwed ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ e e b e 20/07/2641M :
Ridge Wind Acquis ton Lirnted 20/07/2021
Fern Energy RiggeWird Acquisi-ons Limited 14/09/2021
Fern Energy RaageWind Helangs Limted 21/09/2021
Fern Energy Partnerships Hold'ngs Limnited 21/09/2021
Fraisthorpe (Holding) Lirmited 29/03/2022
3Y Oldnhall Energy Fecovery Limited 13/09/2022
Comm2i Lid 15/08/2022
Carlington Point Holzeo Pty Limited 08/0712022
Darlngton Pant Solzr Farrn Pty Lirm-ted 08/07/2022
Darlinglon Point Subnadcs Py Limited 08/07/2022
Nardiz Power Cevelopmenrt Lirmited 23/12/2021
Voyrinkarigas Wind Farm Oy 23/12/2021
Saunamaa Wind farm Oy 23/12/2021
The registerad office of all compan es isted above 15 a7 tn Floor, 33 Holbern, London, Englans, ECIN ZHT
excapt for those set out belio

1. ul Grzypowska 2/29, 00-131, Warsaw, Poland

h]

Pirsert Masons LLP, Captal Square, 58 Morrison Street, Edinburgh, Scoiland, EH3Z 8B2

3 1West Regent Street, Glasgow, G2 1AP
4. 22 rae Alpherse de Newville, 75017 Par's, Frarce
S &tn Flaor, 2 Grand Caral Scuare, Dutlr 2 D02 A3L2, Iretarc

[l
[}

v
m

6 The Carriage House, Station Works, Station 2eac, Claverdon, Warwickshire, Urited £ ngdomr, CV35
7 Zoneindusztrelle do Couwrtne 115 Rue Du Moureiet 84T00 Avicnon, France
4. 13 Salisbury Place, London, Snglana, WIiH 1R

~

freet, Wim ngrer 12801

¥l

9  Tne Corporation Trust Company, Corporation Trust Cenler, 1205 Crarga
Urited States

£4

1 Atn Soor Sattire Court, 20 Caste Ter-ace, Edinburgr, Scotard. EHI 2EN

Y

11 Apoia —ouse. Mercury Fask Wycorabe Lane, Woohurm Green, = g Wycombe, Eng.and, HPLO OHE
22 Level 33101 Conling Street, Me gourne, Viotona, 30CC. Austrana
23 Beaufort Court, £gg Tarm Lare, Hings tangley, Herorasaire Wi 813

"4 7-% Steatford Flace, Lonco~, England, W1C 1AY

The directors be' ave that the carry ng value of tre mvestmentis 1$ seppored by tres trderlyng net assets
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5 Ck PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED)

vt i

APPENDIX — SHARE PR

Fern's share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Tracing Limited is an uniisted cormpsny Evary mantk, our Board of Directors agrees a prce at which it
vl be willing to ssue new shares. The share grice is unaudied.

The figures below include the share price of the previous parent (now Fern Trading Group Limied) as well
as tnis entiny

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19
18 Ve
17 ,,»f
16 e
175 M
u*wvwﬁ‘"
14 PR

13 ———

s
12 e
-

11
1¢

2012 2015 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Barformance is cac

U
rot subject o audit &

ated based on the sale price for Fern's shares at 2 Junc each year. The share price is
y Ernst & Young LL

Annual discrete performance

Financial Year Discrete share price performance
June 2020-22 9.91%

June 20£0-21 4.87%

Jume 201826 0.33%%

June 2018-15 6.23%

Juﬁe 201657 - - - - - - . - 554% -

June 2015 15 3.83%

June 2013-14 3.72%

.June‘QOl"{S - ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ 3.97%

June 2011-12 7 1.02%

Source Octopus Investments Limited, 2 June 2022
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6 | COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors and advisers

i Registered office
i Gte Fioor, 3% Howorr
i _ondaon, Engiand ECLN 207

; T oErnst & Young _LF
{:g‘smyaf@y secretary ! Bedfora Holse
16 Bedford Street,

i Serfast BT2 707

Octopus Company Secretanal Services Limied

Company number
12601635

Forward-looking statements

This Annual Report contans cermain forwaro-coling siaermens relaec o tne Company's fulure busness
and financial perforrmance and future events or developments These staterierts are based on the cur-ent
1O ASSUMmpPLoOns, nzes and Jngertainties, sorre

knowlcage and expectatcns of managerment ang are b

of which are related (o faciors that are peyond the contral of the Company. Accordingly, no assurance can
be given that any particular expactation will be met and forward-look'ng statements regardirg past rends or

activities shouid Nt be aken as a representalicr that suoh frends o actvites wil continue in the future Past

perforrance cannior be rel on as & guide o future pecformance. Nothing n tis Annual Report shouwd be

ot

corstrued as a pro®t forecas




